
AGENDA___________________________________________________     September 28, 2022 

- 1 -

ORANGE COUNTY  
CONTINUUM OF CARE BOARD 

MEETING 
Wednesday, September 28, 2022 

2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.  

 
 
 

                            

 

AGENDA 
Board Members 

Matt Bates, City Net [Secretary] 
Judson Brown, City of Santa Ana  
Nikki Buckstead, Family Solutions Collaborative 
Donald Dermit, The Rock Church 
Becks Heyhoe, OC United Way [Vice Chair] 
Tim Houchen, Hope4Restoration  
Patti Long, Mercy House 
Nishtha Mohendra, Families Forward    
Dawn Price, Friendship Shelter  

Eric Richardson, Volunteers of America 
Maricela Rios-Faust, Human Options [Chair] 
Soledad Rivera, Families Together of OC  
Elida Sanchez, OC Department of Education 
Dr. Shauntina Sorrells, Orangewood Foundation 
George Searcy, Jamboree Housing  
Tim Shaw, Individual  
Christina Weckerly Ramirez, Health Care Agency 

* In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, and County Language Access Policy, those requiring
accommodation and/or interpreter services for this meeting should notify the Office of Care Coordination 72 
hours prior to the meeting at (714) 834-5000 or email CareCoordination@ochca.com. Requests received less 
than 72 hours prior to the meeting will still receive every effort to reasonably fulfill within the time provided. * 

Call to Order – Maricela Rios-Faust, Chair 

Board Member Roll Call – Matt Bates, Secretary 

Public Comments: Members of the public may address the Continuum of Care (CoC) Board on items listed 
within this agenda or matters not appearing on the agenda so long as the subject matter is within the 
jurisdiction of the CoC Board. Members of the public may address the CoC Board with public comments on 
agenda items in the business calendar after the CoC Board member discussion. Comments will be limited to 
three minutes. If there are more than five public speakers, this time will be reduced to two minutes. 

Location:  

County Administration South (CAS) Building 

Conference Center 

425 West Santa Ana Blvd. Room 104/106 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-4599 

Click Here for parking information  

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 1

mailto:CareCoordination@ochca.com
https://www.ochealthinfo.com/sites/healthcare/files/2022-09/Map-Public%20Directions%20CoC%20Board%20In%20Person%20Meeting%20CAS%20Building%20-%20revised.pdf


AGENDA___________________________________________________     September 28, 2022 

- 2 -

To address the CoC Board, members of the public are to complete a Request to Address the CoC Board form 
prior to the beginning of each agenda item and submit it to CoC Board staff. Staff will call your name in the 
order received.  

Members of the public may also submit public comment by emailing CareCoordination@ochca.com. All 
comments submitted via email at least 60 minutes before the start of the CoC Board meeting will be distributed 
to the CoC Board members for their consideration and all comments will be added to the administrative records 
of the meeting. Please include “CoC Board Meeting Comment” in the email subject line.   

Board Member Comments: Members of the CoC Board may provide comments on matters not appearing 
on the agenda so long as the subject matter is within the jurisdiction of the CoC Board. 

CONSENT CALENDAR  
All matters are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board Member for discussion or separate action. 
The CoC Board requests that only pertinent information be discussed during this time. 

No Consent Calendar Items. 

BUSINESS CALENDAR 

1. United States Interagency Council on Homelessness (USICH) Presentation – Helene Schneider, Senior
Regional Advisor, USICH

2. FY2022 CoC Program Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) – Zulima Lundy, Director of Operations, Office
of Care Coordination

a. Update on submittal of FY CoC Program application.

3. CoC Special Notice of Funding Opportunity to Address Unsheltered Homelessness (Special NOFO) – Zulima
Lundy, Director of Operations, Office of Care Coordination

a. Approve the selection of the proposals submitted in response to Request for Proposals for Special
NOFO to Address Unsheltered Homelessness as recommended by the CoC Special NOFO Ad Hoc
for inclusion in the Project Priority listing.

b. Recommend the funding of a Coordinated Entry System project expansion in the amount of
$893,107 and Homeless Management Information System project expansion in the amount of
$396,937.

c. Approve the Ranking Policy as recommended by the CoC Special NOFO Ad Hoc.
d. Approve the CoC Special NOFO Project Priority Listing as recommended by the CoC Special NOFO

Ad Hoc
e. Approve the draft Letter of Commitment for the Public Housing Authorities submitting a Letter of

Interest for the Stability Vouchers.
f. Overview of draft CoC Plan for serving individuals and families experiencing homelessness with

severe service needs.

4. Policies, Procedures and Standard (PPS) Committee Recommendations – Zulima Lundy, Director of
Operations, Office of Care Coordination, and Becks Heyhoe, PPS Committee Chair and Vice Chair

a. Approve the Orange County CoC Data Integration Policy and Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU), Data Breach Policy and updated Homeness Management Information System (HMIS)
Client Consent Form as recommended by the PPS Committee.

b. Approve the changes to the Coordinated Entry System (CES) Prioritization Policy and related
revisions to the CES Policy and Procedures as recommended by the PPS Committee.

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 2

mailto:CareCoordination@ochca.com


AGENDA___________________________________________________     September 28, 2022 

- 3 -

5. HMIS Data Requests – Zulima Lundy, Director of Operations, Office of Care Coordination; Erin DeRycke, 2-
1-1 Orange County, CalOptima Representative

a. Approve CalOptima’s Health’s HMIS data request to support CalOptima Health’s participation in
the California Department of Health Care Services Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program.

6. CoC Governance Charter and Membership – Zulima Lundy, Director of Operations, Office of Care
Coordination and Maricela Rios-Faust, Chair

a. Appoint the following individuals to a CoC Nominating Committee to assist in reviewing and
recommended changes to the CoC Governance Charter and facilitating the CoC Board election
process for the expiring seats, as recommended by the CoC Board Chair:

i. David Gillanders, Pathways of Hope
ii. Elida Sanchez, OC Department of Education

iii. Jennifer Friend, Project Hope Alliance
iv. Jack Toan, Illumination Foundation

7. Impact of Affordable Housing on Housing and Crime in Orange County Study Results Presentation – Dr.
George Tita, Director, Livable Cities Lab, School of Social Ecology, University of California – Irvine

8. Next Meeting: Wednesday, October 26, 2022, from 2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 3



Business Calendar 
Agenda Item 3 

Date:  September 28, 2022 

Subject:  CoC Special Notice of Funding Opportunity to Address Unsheltered Homelessness (Special NOFO) 

Recommended Actions:  

a. Approve the selection of the proposals submitted in response to the Request for Proposals
for Special NOFO) to Address Unsheltered Homelessness as recommended by the CoC Special
NOFO Ad Hoc for inclusion in the Project Priority listing.

b. Recommend the funding of a Coordinated Entry System project expansion in the amount of
$893,107 and Homeless Management Information System project expansion in the amount of
$396,937.

c. Approve the Ranking Policy as recommended by the CoC Special NOFO Ad Hoc.
d. Approve the CoC Special NOFO Project Priority Listing as recommended by the CoC Special NOFO

Ad Hoc.
e. Approve the draft Letter of Commitment for the Public Housing Authorities submitting a Letter of

Interest for the Stability Vouchers.

Background and Analysis 

Selection of Proposals in Response to the RFP for Special Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) to 
Address Unsheltered Homelessness 

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) is making approximately $322 million in 
funding available through a Continuum of Care Supplemental to Address Unsheltered and Rural 
Homelessness Notice of Funding Opportunity (CoC Special NOFO). The CoC Special NOFO funding must be 
utilized to address rural and unsheltered homelessness, particularly in communities with very high levels 
of unsheltered homelessness. Eligible project types under the CoC Special NOFO include permanent 
housing (rapid rehousing and permanent supportive housing), joint transitional housing and permanent 
housing – rapid rehousing, supportive services only (SSO), and Homeless Management Information Systems 
(HMIS). The CoC Special NOFO application for the three-year grant is due on October 20, 2022. The Orange 
County CoC is eligible to apply for $19,846,820 during the CoC Special NOFO, through the Unsheltered 
Homelessness Set Aside funding. 

During the July 12, 2022, Special Meeting of the CoC Board, the Orange County CoC Board approved the 
recommendation to establish a non-conflicted Review Panel to evaluate proposals submitted in response 
to the Request for Proposals (RFP) for Special NOFO to Address Unsheltered Homelessness. The Office of 
Care Coordination, as the Collaborative Applicant for the Orange County CoC, worked to identify individuals 
with a deep knowledge and understanding of the CoC and the homeless service system to support with this 
review process. The CoC Special NOFO Ad Hoc was comprised of three members – Michael Shepherd, 
Housing Advocacy Program Manager, OC United Way; Sarah Nance, Project Manager Sr., Population Health 
Management, CalOptima Health; and Steven Kim, Executive Director, Project Kinship. 

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 4



On August 9, 2022, the Office of Care Coordination released the local RFP for Special NOFO to Address 
Unsheltered Homelessness to solicit new projects that follow a Housing First approach and focus on 
providing supportive services to underserved communities and individuals and/or families experiencing 
homelessness with severe service needs.  The submission deadline was Wednesday, September 7, 2022, at 
12:00 p.m. and a total of eight project proposals were submitted. 
 
The members of the CoC Special NOFO Ad Hoc reviewed the eight proposals based on the scoring criteria 
as outlined in the RFP independently. The CoC Special NOFO Ad Hoc participated in a consensus meeting 
on September 21, 2022, to discuss the proposals at length, provide feedback on areas for improvement 
and highlight the unique strengths of each proposal. Based on discussion during the consensus meeting, 
the Ad Hoc recommended five projects for inclusion in the Orange County CoC Special NOFO Collaborative 
Application. The following agencies and project proposals are being recommended to move forward in the 
application: 

• Friendship Shelter PSH Plus 
• Mercy House Westview PSH 
• Pathways of Hope PSH for Single Adults and Families 
• Illumination Foundation Housing4Health 
• Families Forward Rapid Rehousing for Veterans and Military Connected Families.  

The Office of Care Coordination, as the Collaborative Applicant, will work with the selected proposals and 
applicants to update their proposals accordingly to ensure the most competitive project proposals are 
included in the collaborative application to HUD. 
 
The CoC Special NOFO Ad Hoc also discussed providing funding for the expansion of key infrastructure 
support for the Orange County CoC and recommended funding a SSO project expansion for the 
Coordinated Entry System (CES) and the HMIS to ensure there was increased capacity. The 
recommendation was based on ensuring that the CoC Special NOFOF funding would be adequately 
supported through increased capacity in these two project areas. The CoC Special NOFO recommended 
that these projects be proportionally funded based on the overall CoC Program, Annual Renewal Amount 
and renewal project applications. This is approximately 4.5% for CES and approximately 2% for HMIS, thus 
recommending new expansion project applications in the amount of $893,107 and $396,937 respectively.  
 
CoC Special NOFO Project Ranking Policy  

On September 6, 2022, the CoC Special NOFO Ad Hoc met to discuss rating and scoring criteria and funding 
priorities for the CoC Special NOFO. The Office of Care Coordination confirmed support from the Ad Hoc 
for the recommended Scoring Criteria for proposals received in response to the Orange County CoC Special 
NOFO solicitation. The Scoring Criteria was previously presented during the September 14, 2022, Special 
Meeting of the CoC Board.  
 
Utilizing the CoC Board reviewed scoring rubrics for project proposals, the CoC Special NOFO Ad Hoc also 
considered the following items in the ranking and tiering process: 

• Rating and Ranking Criteria Score 
• Project type 
• Funding request amount 
• Competitiveness of Special NOFO proposals  
• Strategy to maximize available funding in the Special NOFO opportunity  

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 5



 
The CoC Special NOFO Ad Hoc determined to rank and tier projects based on the overall score, from highest 
score to lowest score. The proposed policy supports the thoughtful evaluation of the project proposals, as 
well as reflects the priorities and guidance provided by the CoC Board and HUD. Given that no proposals 
were submitted for CES and HMIS, the CoC Special NOFO Ad Hoc recommended listing these at the bottom 
of the CoC Special NOFO Project Priority Listing 
 
CoC Special NOFO Project Priority Listing 

Utilizing the above described CoC Special NOFO Project Ranking Policy, the CoC Special NOFO Ad Hoc and 
the Office of Care Coordination developed a CoC Special NOFO Project Priority Listing.  

Attachment A details the CoC Special NOFO Project Priority Listing as recommended by the CoC Special 
NOFO Ad Hoc and details the ranking of the project proposals for the inclusion in the Orange County CoC 
Special NOFO Consolidated Application. Approval of the recommended action will support the Orange 
County CoC in completing the requirements of the CoC Special NOFO.  

Leveraging Stability Vouchers 

On August 16, 2022, HUD released Notice PIH 2022-24: Stability Voucher Program. This funding opportunity 
for Public Housing Authorities has been designed to assist communities in their continued efforts to address 
homelessness. HUD will make 4,000 vouchers available to assist individuals and families who are: homeless, 
at-risk of homelessness, fleeing, or attempting to flee, domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, 
stalking, and human trafficking, and veterans and families that include a veteran family member that meets 
one of the proceeding criteria. HUD is encouraging Public Housing Authorities to partner with CoCs to 
support efforts to address unsheltered homelessness, including committing available vouchers and public 
housing units to these efforts. HUD seeks to prioritize Public Housing Authorities to receive Stability 
Vouchers who are partnering with CoCs on this effort. 
 
Public Housing Authorities interested in the Stability Voucher Program must self-identify to HUD their 
interest in receiving an allocation and demonstrate a strategy to coordinate assistance with services 
available in the community. Public Housing Authorities must submit a Letter of Commitment from 
partnering CoC with their application for a Stability Voucher allocation to be prioritized for this opportunity. 
In the letter, the partnering CoC must confirm an existing referral partnership with victim service providers 
and veteran service organizations in the geographic area. 
 
At the September 14, 2022, CoC Board special meeting, the Office of Care Coordination provided an update 
to on the Stability Voucher Program and shared efforts being explored with the Public Housing Authorities 
to leverage Stability Vouchers for the CoC Special NOFO. As such, the Office of Care Coordination as the 
Collaborative Applicant and CES Lead has prepared Attachment B, draft Letter of Commitment for the 
Public Housing Authorities, that may be provided to the Public Housing Authorities submitting a Letter of 
Interest for the Stability Vouchers to HUD.  
 
CoC Plan for Serving Individuals and Families Experiencing Homelessness with Severe Service Needs 

As part of the CoC Special NOFO application process, CoCs are tasked with developing a CoC plan for serving 
individuals and families experiencing homelessness with severe service needs (CoC Plan). The Office of Care 
Coordination, in partnership with Homebase Consulting, facilitated five listening sessions to provide an 

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 6



overview of the CoC Plan requirements as outlined in the CoC Special NOFO application and allow space 
for recommendations for specific components of the plan to be developed. In addition to the listening 
sessions, the Office of Care Coordination created a SurveyMonkey survey requesting input and feedback 
on the CoC Plan being developed, which was available from September 1, 2022, to September 16, 2022. 
Some of the topics covered through the survey and listening sessions included the leveraging of housing 
resources; the Orange County CoC’s current strategy to identify, shelter, and house individuals experiencing 
unsheltered homelessness; using data and performance to improve the Orange County CoC’s strategy for 
addressing unsheltered homelessness; and how to best identify and prioritize households experiencing or 
with histories of unsheltered homelessness. Homebase Consulting compiled community feedback received 
to assist Orange County CoC with developing the CoC Plan specific to identified needs within Orange 
County. 

The CoC Plan for serving individuals and families experiencing homelessness with severe service needs will 
continue to be refined for inclusion in the Collaborative Application.  

Attachments 

Attachment A – CoC Special NOFO Project Priority Listing 
Attachment B – Draft Letter of Commitment  
  

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 7



Orange County Continuum of Care Special NOFO Project Priority Listing 

Accepted Projects 

Project 
Ranking Applicant Name Proposal Name Project 

Component 
Funding 

Requested 
Recommended 

Funding Score 

1 Friendship Shelter, Inc. Friendship shelter PSH Plus PSH  $2,198,582  $2,398,582 95.33% 
2 Mercy House Living Centers Westview PSH PSH  $4,954,396  $4,954,396 90.67% 
3 Pathways of Hope PSH for Single Adults and Families PSH  $5,266,704  $5,266,704 89.00% 
4 Illumination Foundation Housing4Health PSH  $4,453,171  $4,453,171 88.67% 
5 Families Forward Rapid Rehousing for Veterans and Military Connected 

Families  
RRH 

 $1,591,895  $1,483,923 
85.00% 

6 County of Orange Coordinated Entry System SSO Unsheltered 
Homelessness 

SSO 
$893,107 

7 People for Irvine Community Health HMIS Community Support HMIS $396,937 
Total $   19,846,819 

Rejected Projects 

Project Applicant Name Proposal Name Project Component Total Request Score 

A Illumination Foundation Bridge2Home Joint TH/PH-RRH  $2,198,582 81.67% 
B City of Garden Grove Roadmap to Success Program RRH  $600,000 71.00% 
C The Hub OC The Hub Resource Center Permanent Solutions SSO  $1,924,934 37.67% 

Item 3. Attachment A

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 8



October 2022 

Dominique Bloom 
General Deputy Assistance Secretary 
Office of Public and Individual Housing 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Washington, D.C. 20410-5000 

RE:  Letter of Commitment:  Stability Voucher Program 

Dear General Deputy Secretary Assistance Secretary, 

The County of Orange’s Office of Care Coordination is the designated Continuum of Care (CoC) 
Collaborative Applicant and Lead Agency for the Orange County CoC (CA-602) and also administers Orange 
County’s Coordinated Entry System (CES). The CES covers the entire geographic area of the Orange County 
CoC and offers multiple points of access across the jurisdiction. The Office of Care Coordination, on behalf 
of the Orange County CoC, is pleased to provide support and work in partnership with the [PHA] for the 
Stability Voucher Program described in Notice PIH 2022-24. 

The Orange County CoC and [PHA] have an established partnership and proven ability to implement 
coordinated approaches to reduce homelessness in Orange County, improve service engagement and 
promote housing stability. Most recently, the Orange County CoC partnered with the four housing 
authorities in Orange County, including [PHA], to implement the Emergency Housing Voucher Program. A 
partnership on the Stability Voucher Program will be a natural extension of the existing relationship 
between the Orange County CoC and [PHA] to serve the eligible populations listed below: 

a. Individuals and families who are currently experiencing homelessness;
b. Individuals and families at risk of homelessness;
c. Individuals and families fleeing or attempting to flee domestic violence, dating violence, stalking,

sexual assault; and
d. Veterans and families that include a veteran family that meet one of the proceeding criteria (a, b,

or c).

In support of [PHA’s] participating in the Stability Voucher Program, the Orange County CoC will target 
the Stability Vouchers to the most vulnerable eligible participants through the CES referral process. The 
purpose of CES is to help communities assess the needs, vulnerability and program eligibility using 
standardized access, assessment, prioritization, and referral processes. CES has a long history of referring 
vulnerable applicants to a variety of housing projects throughout Orange County, including project based 
and tenant-based voucher projects, in partnership with street outreach programs, emergency shelters, 
victim service provider agencies and veteran service providers. The Orange County CoC is committed to 
providing the services below: 

a. Refer eligible families and individuals to the public housing authority through CES;
b. Pair supportive services funded by the CoC or other local, state or federal funding sources with

the Stability Vouchers; and

Item 3. Attachment B

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 9



c. Collaborate with stakeholders to develop a prioritization plan for the Stability Voucher Program.

The Orange County CoC strongly supports [PHA] in their interest in implementing the Stability Voucher 
Program and their ongoing commitment to provide innovating permanent housing solutions and respond 
to unmet needs in Orange County. 

Sincerely, 

Item 3. Attachment B

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 10



Business Calendar 
Agenda Item 4 

 

Date:  September 28, 2022 

Subject:  Policies, Procedures and Standards (PPS) Committee Recommendations 

Recommended Actions:  

a. Approve the Orange County CoC Data Integration Policy and Memorandum of Understanding, Data 
Breach Policy and updated Homeless Management Information System Client Consent Form as 
recommended by the PPS Committee.  

b. Approve the changes to the Coordinated Entry System (CES) Prioritization Policy and related 
revisions to the CES Policy and Procedures as recommended by the PPS Committee.   

Background and Analysis  

Orange County CoC Data Integration Policy and Data Breach Policy 

On August 10, 2021, the PPS Committee moved to establish an Ad Hoc to review a data integration request 
by the North Orange County Public Safety Collaborative (NOCPSC) and Outreach Grid in more detail and 
return to the PPS Committee with a recommendation on how to best address the request. 

An Ad Hoc comprised of three members was established to explore the request for a data-sharing 
mechanism between Outreach Grid and the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS). The Ad 
Hoc had an initial meeting on September 28, 2021; a joint meeting with representatives from NOCPSC and 
Outreach Grid on October 25, 2021, to further discuss the request and gain additional insight and 
background; and a final meeting on January 5, 2022, to debrief on the information received and arrive at a 
recommendation for the PPS Committee Meeting. 

The Ad Hoc made a recommendation on the request that was presented to the PPS Committee for approval 
on January 11, 2022, and approved by the PPS Committee. The approved recommendation included 
redefining the request from NOCPSC and Outreach Grid, with the following principles and within the 
following parameters: 

• The preservation of HMIS integrity is paramount, including governance, data quality, functionality 
and purpose. The Ad Hoc had outstanding concerns regarding how the proposed manual push / 
pull of data could compromise data integrity and recommend this be further explored in 
conjunction with the HMIS Lead to ensure appropriate checks and balances. 

• The Ad Hoc supports the aim of linking individuals experiencing homelessness to appropriate 
resources and are therefore proposing that this collaboration could focus on data-sharing and 
integration of Coordinated Entry System (CES) elements only. This would involve a pull of the CES 
related data only from HMIS into Outreach Grid. The Ad Hoc was supportive of receiving 
information and data from Outreach Grid to HMIS, as determined appropriate by the Orange 
County Continuum of Care (CoC), through a pull mechanism. 

• The Ad Hoc is committed to promoting efficiencies in service delivery and propose that NOCPSC 
and Outreach Grid seek to become HMIS participating agencies through the current established 

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 11



process as detailed in the HMIS Policies and Procedures. This would allow for the entry of data 
directly into HMIS and facilitate care coordination with the Orange County CoC. 

• The Ad Hoc recognized that mechanics of implementation will require further thought and 
potential policy / process, including but not limited to: 

o Role-Based Access Control – determining which users have view, edit and deletion 
privileges and who is responsible for setting and maintaining these permissions. 

o Release of Information / Authorization. 
o Audit and Breach Procedures. 
o Frequency and Costs 
o Roles and Responsibilities 

Additionally, the Ad Hoc’s recommendation provided the next step and direction for the Orange County 
CoC and the HMIS Lead to develop a data-sharing policy and related processes and procedures.  

The item was brought before the CoC Board on January 19, 2022, for approval and the CoC Board 
membership moved to approve the recommended action with the caveat that the policy and process will 
be presented to the CoC Board for final approval. 

The Working Group was established at the recommendation of the Ad Hoc comprise of HMIS Lead, HMIS 
Administrators and representatives with technical backgrounds on data sharing mechanism, drafted data 
integration policy. Throughout the process of meeting from March to July 2022, the Working Group 
identified how the policy could serve in a broader capacity for data integration requests presented to the 
Orange County CoC and drafted a proposed policy and procedure for the Ad Hoc to review. 

As next step, the Ad Hoc reconvened on July 5, 2022, to review a draft of the recommended data integration 
policy, as well as discuss outstanding questions and considerations from the Working Group. The Ad Hoc 
noted the importance of defining specifics around data points requested, roles and responsibilities around 
access to data imported and exported from HMIS, and the purpose the data is being requested/utilized. 2-
1-1 Orange County (211OC) as the HMIS Lead in partnership with the Office of Care Coordination revised 
the draft policy and created a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) template based on feedback from 
the Ad Hoc that requires agencies to note specifics around data requested.  

At the August 9, 2022, meeting of the PPS Committee, the recommended Data Integration Policy and 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), Data Breach Policy and updated HMIS Client Consent Form drafts 
were presented to the PPS membership for consideration. The PPS Committee membership motioned to 
amend the recommended action to allow additional feedback and review of the materials presented. The 
Office of Care Coordination, on behalf of the Orange County CoC, facilitated a feedback period for the draft 
policy from August 18, 2022, to September 2, 2022. The CoC General Membership, local stakeholders, and 
community partners were invited via email to submit feedback or questions on the policy via the HMIS Help 
Desk. Feedback was collected and reviewed in preparation of the revised recommended action and can be 
referenced in Attachment C.  

A draft of the Orange County CoC Data Integration Policy and MOU, Data Breach Policy and updated HMIS 
Client Consent Form was presented at the PPS Committee meeting on September 13, 2022. The PPS 
Committee motioned to approve the recommendation of the Orange County CoC Data Integration Policy 
and MOU, Data Breach Policy and updated HMIS Client Consent Form to be presented to the CoC Board 
for review and approval.  

Approval of the recommended Action A by the CoC Board will support with the implementation of  the CoC 
Data Integration Policy and Data Breach Policy and will allow the Orange County CoC to not only respond 

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 12



to the request of the NOCPSC but also to continued data integration requests received. The Office of Care 
Coordination and 211OC anticipate continued data integration needs based on requirements coming from 
the State and seeks to be prepared to respond in a timely manner to best serve the Orange County 
community and its stakeholders. 

Coordinated Entry System Policy and Procedures 

On March 8, 2022, the PPS Committee approved the recommendations of revising the CES Policy and 
Procedures, including the incorporation of an Emergency Transfer Request and discontinuing the use of 
the Vulnerability Index-Service Prioritization Decision Assistance Tool (VI-SPDAT). The third proposed 
revision of the CES Policy and Procedures was to discontinue the shelter preference; however, the PPS 
Committee motioned for the creation of a working group to further discuss the proposed revision with a 
wider group of stakeholders. 
 
The Office of Care Coordination solicited interested agencies to participate in the creation of a working 
Group to further explore the Shelter Priority, called the Shelter Preference Working Group (Working 
Group). The membership for the Working Group was comprised of diverse representative, including City 
Staff, County Staff, shelter providers, street outreach teams and other homeless service providers. The 
Working Group began meeting regularly to discuss the CES prioritization policy in depth and examine 
options regarding the shelter preference in the CES prioritization policy. 
 
The Working Group explored three options for the CES Policy: 1) Keep the shelter preference; 2) Identify 
Hybrid Options; and 3) Remove the shelter preference. Through robust discussion and consensus building, 
the Working Group had strong agreement to explore hybrid options and recognized the importance of 
service engagement in successful housing outcomes and the goal to prioritize the most vulnerable 
households to appropriate and available housing opportunities. The Working Group discussed the following 
hybrid options and is recommending Option 3: 

• Option 1:  50% Resource Split 
• Option 2:  Point In Time Resource Split 
• Option 3:  Chronic Homelessness Preference 
• Option 4:  Shelter Preference After Top 10% 
• Option 5:  Shelter Preference in Top 5% 

The prioritization policy recommended by the Working Group is to prioritize people experiencing chronic 
homelessness by length of homelessness then people not experiencing chronic homelessness by length of 
homelessness, disabling condition and shelter status. The Office of Care Coordination, on behalf of the 
Orange County CoC, shared a draft of the updated CES Policies and Procedures with the CoC distribution 
list for public feedback on August 31, 2022. In addition to opening the public feedback period from August 
31, 2022, to September 7, 2022, the Office of Care Coordination received feedback from the Lived 
Experience Advisory Committee on September 6, 2022, and hosted a public listening session on September 
7, 2022, to provide the opportunity to learn about the recommended changes to the CES Policy and 
Procedures, as well as the opportunity to provide feedback. Attachment H provides a summary of CES Policy 
Feedback Received through this process.  

At the September 13, 2022, meeting of the PPS Committee, the proposed recommendation from the 
Working Group and revised CES Policy and Procedures was approved by the PPS Committee membership 
for recommendation to the CoC Board.  

The revised draft of the CES Policy and Procedures detailing the recommended change is being presented 
to the CoC Board for approval. Please reference Attachment F for a redline version and Attachment G for 
a clean version. This recommendation will allow CES to operate more equitably and be more accessible by 

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 13



ensuring those with the longest lengths of homelessness and disabling conditions are prioritized for housing 
opportunities. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Data Integration Policy 
Attachment B – Data Integration Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
Attachment C – Data Breach Policy 
Attachment D – HMIS Client Consent Form 
Attachment E – Summary of Feedback Received for Recommended Action A 
Attachment F – CES Policy Draft – Redline Version 
Attachment G – CES Policy Draft – Clean Version 
Attachment H – CES Policy Feedback Received 
 
  

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 14



New: Data Integration Policy 
Data integration is the process of exporting data from one data system and importing it into another. 
For the purposes of the Data Integration policy, data import is the process of taking data from an 
outside case management database and importing it into HMIS, and data export is the process of taking 
data out of HMIS and importing it into an outside case management database.  

Requests for data import or export must be submitted through the Data Import/Export Request Form. 
Consult the current HUD Data Dictionary and HUD Data Standards Manual for HUD standard fields 
collected in HMIS. All imports must be in HUD CSV Format unless otherwise approved by the HMIS Lead. 
Agencies requesting exports of their own data do not require approval from the CoC Board. All other 
requests are decided by the CoC Board in conjunction with the CoC Lead and the HMIS Lead. Requests 
must demonstrate how the data integration will improve care coordination for clients in order to be 
considered. 

Data Integration Requirements 

Agencies wishing to request any data integration with OC HMIS must agree to the following policies. The 
Requesting Agency and/or Outside Database Vendor must sign an MOU prior to any work being 
completed. 

• Prior to transferring any data, the HMIS Lead will conduct an Agency/Vendor Review which may
include but is not limited to privacy, security, data sharing, data storage, data timeliness, data
completeness, and data collection practices.

• All approved data integrations are subject to an annual review by the HMIS Lead, CoC Lead, and
CoC Board. This review will include a certification to ensure the data integration is in compliance
with the HMIS Policies and Procedures, and that the items included in the Agency/Vendor
Review are still in effect. The review will also consider if the data integration is still necessary
and favorable for the Continuum of Care. If the data integration is no longer considered
necessary or if the audit is failed, the data integration will be terminated.

• Violation of any of the policies and procedures in this document may be grounds for termination
of the data integration at any time, and is at the discretion of the HMIS Lead. The CoC Board will
be notified of any data integrations that have been terminated.

• The HMIS Lead will provide an estimate for implementation and maintenance fees upon
receiving the appropriate data integration request form. If the CoC chooses not to cover these
fees, they will become the responsibility of the agency requesting the data integration. Fees will
be updated annually by the HMIS Lead.

• The Requesting Agency and Outside Database Vendor must agree to the Roles and
Responsibilities outlined in this policy as applicable.

• Data integrations are subject to all policies and procedures outlined in this document. Imported
data is owned by the agency responsible for managing the data in HMIS.

• Data integration projects approved by the CoC Board will be scheduled to accommodate the
current workload of the HMIS Lead. Scheduling is at the discretion of the HMIS Lead.

Item 4. Attachment A

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 15

https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/3824/hmis-data-dictionary/
https://hudhdx.info/vendorresources.aspx


Roles and Responsibilities 

A critical component of data integration is understanding the responsibilities of those involved in the 
process. The following participants may be involved in the data integration process. Please review the 
tables below for the expected responsibilities for each participant. The responsibilities are subject to 
change and will be finalized when the project plan for the data integration is developed. 

• HMIS Lead: HMIS administrator for the Orange County CoC
• Requesting Agency: The Provider that is serving clients directly, and is the responsible party for

the data. If the Requesting Agency is requesting a data import, the agency must be participating
in HMIS, and must be in compliance with all policies and procedures outlined in this document.
If the agency is not already participating in HMIS and does not meet the criteria outlined in the
Agency Access section, the agency must submit the Agency Access Application and be approved
to access HMIS prior to submitting the Data Import/Export Request Form.

• Outside Database Vendor: The entity that provides the technical and administrative support for
the outside database. This entity will not be given direct access to HMIS.

Importing Data into HMIS 
Task Responsibility 

Submit Data Import/Export Request Form Requesting Agency 
Determine specifications of import into HMIS (frequency, report 
parameters, data elements, report format, etc.) HMIS Lead/Requesting Agency 
Develop project plan HMIS Lead 
Review privacy/consent practices for outside database to ensure client 
consent to share data in HMIS HMIS Lead 
Review outside database for proper collection of HUD required data 
and/or custom data HMIS Lead 
Format/prepare data in approved format Requesting Agency 
Review prepared data for accuracy and completeness Requesting Agency 
Submit prepared data in approved submission process Requesting Agency 
Review data from agency for proper format and completeness HMIS Lead 
Complete import of data into HMIS HMIS Lead 
Review imported data in HMIS and review accuracy/completeness Requesting Agency 
Report any data imported incorrectly to HMIS Lead Requesting Agency 
Resolve any issues with import file or requesting database and resend 
data as needed Requesting Agency 
Resolve any issues with HMIS import and re-upload data as needed HMIS Lead 

Exporting Data from HMIS 
Task Responsibility 

Submit Data Import/Export Request Form Requesting Agency 

Determine specifications of export from HMIS (frequency, report 
parameters, data elements, report format, etc.) 

Outside Database 
Vendor/HMIS Lead/Requesting 
Agency 

Item 4. Attachment A

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 16



Develop project plan HMIS Lead 
Represent and warrant software is in compliance with best practice 
policies for privacy and security practices Outside Database Vendor 
Represent and warrant software is in compliance with best practice 
policies for access roles and data sharing Outside Database Vendor 
Represent and warrant software is in compliance with best practice 
policies for data storage and security infrastructure Outside Database Vendor 
Review agencies/users that will have access to data to ensure 
compliance with HMIS Policies and Procedures HMIS Lead 
Ensure HMIS Consent Form and related documents name outside 
database/vendor for transparency HMIS Lead 
Create export file and/or export data from HMIS as needed HMIS Lead 
Import data into outside database Outside Database Vendor 

Review imported data in outside database for accuracy/completeness 
Outside Database 
Vendor/Requesting Agency 

Notify HMIS Lead of any errors with export data 
Outside Database 
Vendor/Requesting Agency 

Resolve any issues with HMIS export and resend data as needed HMIS Lead 
Resolve any issues with outside database import as needed Outside Database Vendor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Item 4. Attachment A

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 17



Memorandum of Understanding 
Between 

211 Orange County (HMIS Lead Agency for Orange County) 

And 

[Agency Name] 

I. Purpose
a. The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to clearly identify the

roles and responsibilities of each party as they relate to their participation in the [select
one or both]:

i. Import of data into the Orange County Homeless Management Information
System (OC HMIS) from the [database name].

ii. Export of data from the Orange County Homeless Management Information
System (OC HMIS) into the [database name].

b. The purpose of this data integration is [describe what will be achieved with this data
integration/how the integration will improve care coordination for clients].

II. Project Overview
a. The data [import/export] will occur [frequency] on or around the [date].
b. The reporting period of each data [import/export] will be [dates].
c. The data [import/export] will include [client population, project types, etc.].
d. The data [import/export] will include the following data elements.

i. [Data element]
ii. [Data element]

III. 211OC’s Responsibilities [include import/export responsibilities based on type of integration]
a. Data Import Responsibilities

i. Review request and develop project plan
ii. Review privacy/consent practices for [database name] to ensure client consent

to share data in OC HMIS
iii. Review [database name] for proper collection of HUD required data and/or

custom data
iv. Review data from [database name] for proper format and completeness
v. Complete import of data into OC HMIS

vi. Resolve any issues with OC HMIS import and re-upload data as needed

Item 4. Attachment B

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 18



b. Data Export Responsibilities
i. Review request and develop project plan

ii. Review the agencies and users that will have access to exported data to ensure
compliance with the HMIS Policies and Procedures

iii. Ensure HMIS Consent Form and related documents name [database
name/agency name] for transparency

iv. Create export file and/or export data from HMIS as needed
v. Resolve any issues with OC HMIS export and resend data as needed

IV. [Agency Name]’s Responsibilities [include import/export responsibilities based on type of
integration]

a. Data Import Responsibilities
i. Submit Data Import/Export Request Form

ii. Determine specifications of import into HMIS with HMIS Lead (frequency, report
parameters, data elements, report format, etc.)

iii. Format/prepare data in approved format
iv. Review prepared data for accuracy and completeness
v. Submit prepared data in approved submission process

vi. Review imported data in HMIS and review accuracy/completeness
vii. Report any data imported incorrectly to HMIS Lead

viii. Resolve any issues with import file or requesting database and resend data as
needed

b. Data Export Responsibilities
i. Submit Data Import/Export Request Form

ii. Determine specifications of export from HMIS (frequency, report parameters,
data elements, report format, etc.) with HMIS Lead

iii. Represent and warrant that [database vendor] has adopted and follows best
practices policies for:

1. Data storage and security infrastructure
2. Privacy and security practices
3. Access roles and data sharing

iv. Import data into [database name]
v. Review imported data in [database name] for accuracy/completeness

vi. Notify 211OC of any errors with export data
vii. Resolve any issues with outside database import as needed

V. Terms and Conditions
a. The terms of this MOU Agreement are in effect for the duration of the data integration

project.
b. [Agency Name] and [database name] must meet all requirements outlined by 211OC in

the Agency/Vendor Review in order for the data integration to commence.
c. This data integration will be reviewed on an annual basis by 211OC, the CoC Lead, and

the CoC Board. This review will include a certification to ensure the data integration is in
compliance with the HMIS Policies and Procedures, and that the items included in the

Item 4. Attachment B

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 19



Agency/Vendor Review are still in effect. The review will also consider if the data 
integration is still necessary and favorable for the Continuum of Care. If the data 
integration is no longer considered necessary or if the audit is failed, the data 
integration will be terminated. 

d. [Agency Name] and [database name] are required to be in compliance with the current
HMIS Policies and Procedures. Violation of any of the HMIS Policies and Procedures at
any time may be grounds for termination of the data integration, and is at the discretion
of 211OC.

e. Data imported into OC HMIS is owned by [Agency Name].
f. [Data Imports only] Data imported into OC HMIS will remain in OC HMIS until the data

is required to be purged by HUD regulations, and is not contingent upon the data
integration being terminated.

g. [Data Exports Only] Client records exported from HMIS must be deleted from [database
name] 7 years after the record creation date in compliance with HUD regulations.

VI. Fees
a. The estimated first year cost to complete this data [import/export] is [cost]. This

includes [hours] of planning, testing, and implementation of the data integration, and
[hours] per data [import/export] that occurs during the year. If time spent on this data
integration is at least 15% above or below the estimated hours the fees will be adjusted
to reflect this change.

b. [Cost] for planning, testing, and implementation must be paid in order for work on this
data integration to begin.

c. [Cost] must be received for each data [import/export] prior to the data [import/export]
being completed.

d. Fees are not refundable once work has been completed.
e. Fees will be updated annually by 211OC.

VII. Modification and Termination
a. Amendments to this agreement must be made in writing and signed by both entities

before going into effect.
b. [Agency Name] may terminate this agreement at any time.
c. [Data Imports only] If [Agency Name] is not completing direct data entry into OC HMIS

once the data integration is terminated, [Agency Name]’s access to HMIS will be
revoked. [Agency Name] may request an export of their data entered into OC HMIS.

d. [Data Exports only] [Agency Name] is responsible for maintaining privacy and security
of client data, even after the data integration has been terminated.

VIII. Effective Date and Signature
a. This MOU will be in effect once signed by authorized officials at both 211OC and

[agency name], and will remain in effect until the data integration has been terminated.

______________________________ _____________  

Item 4. Attachment B

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 20



211OC Authorized Official Date 

________________________________ _____________ 

[Agency Name] Authorized Official Date 

Item 4. Attachment B

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 21



New: Data Breach Policy 
A data breach is the unauthorized access or acquisition of data that compromises the security, 
confidentiality, or integrity of data in HMIS.  Data may be in any format (electronic, hardcopy or verbal) 
and may consist of a single piece of data and/or an entire data system. Breaches to the HMIS servers are 
managed by the HMIS vendor. If a breach to the HMIS servers occurs, the HMIS vendor will notify the 
HMIS Lead, and the HMIS Lead will notify the participating agencies as appropriate. 

Breaches may also occur at participating agencies. The participating agency is responsible for 
immediately mitigating the data breach to the extent possible as soon as the breach is identified, 
including notifying clients who may have been impacted by this breach. Data breaches could include but 
are not limited to: 

• HMIS users sharing HMIS account and/or passwords with others.
• Sharing client identifying information with anyone that doesn’t have access to HMIS or hasn’t

been approved to access that data.
• Sharing client identifying information over an unencrypted network.
• Leaving printed documents with client identifying information in an unsecured location.

Any suspected data breach must be reported to the HMIS Lead by submitting the Data Breach Incident 
Report. The HMIS Lead will review the breach and the mitigating actions taken by the agency, and will 
assist with any additional action that may be needed. The HMIS Lead will report all data breaches to the 
Agency Access Working Group, and that group will determine if any corrective action is needed. 
Corrective action may include but is not limited to notifying the CoC Board, CoC Lead, and funders of the 
agency, and revoking HMIS access. 

Item 4. Attachment C

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 22



Update: Client Consent Form (in yellow) 

Orange County Continuum of Care 

Homeless Management Information S ystem Participating Entities 

Please note that the list of entities contributing data to HMIS can change frequently and without notice, and 
therefore the website should be consulted for the most recent list – http://ochmis.org/about-
hmis/contributing-agencies/. 

The following entities are participating in the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS). These 
entities have the ability to enter data into HMIS and also view the client’s information previously entered by 
other HMIS participating entities, including utilization of homeless services in Orange County.  

1736 Family Crisis Center 
American Family Housing 
Anaheim Housing Authority 
Casa Teresa 
Casa Youth Shelter 
City Net 
City of Costa Mesa 
City of Dana Point 
City of Garden Grove 
City of Huntington Beach 
City of San Clemente 
City of Stanton 
Colette's Children's Home 
Community Action Partnership of Orange 

County  
County of Orange/Office of Care 

Coordination 
Covenant House of California 
Dayle McIntosh Center  
Families Forward 
Families Together of Orange County 
Family Assistance Ministries 
Family Solutions Collaborative 
Friendship Shelter 
Grandma's House of Hope 
Health Care Agency – Behavioral Health 

Services 
HIS-OC 
Housing for Health Orange County 
Illumination Foundation 

Jamboree  
Lutheran Social Services of Southern 

California 
Mental Health Association 
Mercy House 
New Directions for Veterans 
OC Rescue Mission 
Orange County Asian and Pacific Islander 

Community Alliance 
Orange County Housing Authority 
Orange County United Way 
People Assisting the Homeless (PATH) 
Pathways of Hope 
Project Kinship 
Project Self-Sufficiency 
Salvation Army  
Santa Ana Housing Authority 
Santa Ana Police Department 
Share Our Selves 
South County Outreach 
SPIN 
StandUp for Kids 
The Orangewood Foundation 
Tierney Center Goodwill OC 
US Veterans Initiative 
Volunteers of America Los Angeles (VOALA) 
Waymakers 
We Care Los Alamitos 
WisePlace for Women 

The following entities have restricted access in HMIS. This means that the entities are limited to only 
entering data into HMIS are not able to view client’s history, files, project enrollments, etc. 

City of Huntington Beach 

Item 4. Attachment D

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 23



Santa Ana Police Department 

Below is a list of the agencies or entities that have been approved to receive ongoing exports of data from 
HMIS. Signing this form gives the agencies below access to your client identifying data for the purposes of 
data analysis or care coordination.

Item 4. Attachment D

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 24



Agency Feedback 1 
Agency was interested in exploring data integration for their agency, and had the questions below. 

• Would there be a data exchange template built for providers to use?
• How often would the data exchange occur?
• Would it be a manual process or automatic?

211OC response: 

Thanks for your email. The Data Integration policy has been left intentionally vague in some areas to 
allow 211OC to have flexibility to respond to specific data requests. When the policy is finalized we will 
be releasing a Data Import/Export Request Form, and any agencies interested in data integration would 
need to complete that form to initiate the process. If your agency wanted to import data into Clarity 
from another database it would be manual process, and the files would have to meet the HUD CSV 
specifications. The import would occur at most a couple times a week, but it would also depend on your 
needs. 

The link for the September PPS meeting is below. The meeting is at 3:30. 

Join the meeting from your computer: 
https://ocgov.webex.com/ocgov/j.php?MTID=me3574ea77b5c6cc12c94b72e96bc8dc8 

Meeting number: 2465 268 3270 
Password: pps112 

Agency Feedback 2 
• Roles and Responsibilities Importing/Exporting Data

o There are a lot of tasks that need to take place prior to the first step in Importing or
Exporting data into HMIS. As of now, it is difficult to find the documentation that
outlines the data format for anything in HMIS that exists outside of the federal HMIS
data dictionary. There are custom forms that Orange County uses to collect data beyond
what is required federally. I recommend adding some additional roles and
responsibilities that would help requesting agencies get their database ready prior to
submitting the Import/Export request form.
 Data dictionary that includes data elements and their format will be created,

updated, and maintained: HMIS Lead
 Request data dictionary and modify reports or database to prepare for data

import upload: Requesting Agency
• Roles and Responsibilities Import Data (Page 8)

o Run Report of Data in HMIS and Review Accuracy/Completeness
 Of what? There’s some gray area here that I think should be defined specifically.
 Suggestion: add “Run Report of Data in HMIS and Review

Accuracy/Completeness of uploaded data.” To remove any ambiguity.
o Flag and report to HMIS Lead any data imported incorrectly

Item 4. Attachment E

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 25

https://hudhdx.info/vendorresources.aspx
https://hudhdx.info/vendorresources.aspx
https://ocgov.webex.com/ocgov/j.php?MTID=me3574ea77b5c6cc12c94b72e96bc8dc8


 Where will this task take place? To my knowledge there’s not a way to “flag”
data in HMIS.

 Suggestion: “Flag and report to HMIS Lead any data imported incorrectly within
data accuracy report” to remove ambiguity.

o Resolve any issues with the prepared data and resend as needed
 Where is this issue to be resolved? It could be resolved directly in HMIS by the

requesting agency, or it could be resolved within the requesting agencies
database.

 Generally, upload issues would be issues with one or more fields which would
necessitate fixing the data in the requesting agencies database and then
reuploading the data.

• Roles and Responsibilities Exporting Data from HMIS (Page 8)
o Review access roles and data sharing of outside database

 This is ambiguous and could range from reading over MOUs to requesting
specific data sharing policies or procedures from the requesting agency. I
suggest removing any ambiguity by inserting a clause that specifies what this
review would entail.

o Export Data from HMIS
 Assigned to the HMIS lead, but is there a possibility to allow the requesting

agency to do this through a custom report? I don’t know what the potential
volume of request might be, but I can see this becoming a full-time role in and
of itself.

o Is it possible to create the following roles:
 Request custom report for data export: Requesting Agency
 Create custom report for data export: HMIS Lead
 Run report for data export: Requesting Agency

• Santa Ana Police Department
o I see that the Santa Ana police department has access to viewing client data in HMIS. I

have some concerns about entering into an agreement that could potentially lead to
SAPD being able to do data exports. As you know, there is a lot of sensitive data in HMIS
that SAPD does not currently have the ability to do any sort of large-scale analysis on. If
SAPD were to be able to do data exports; they would have the ability to take that data
and import in into a tool like PowerBi or Tableau and pull out a lot of data – including
geo location, dates, times. This data could be used to track people very easily. I think it’s
worth asking what set of circumstances might lead to SAPD being allowed access to
viewing historical data or getting access to data exports.

211OC Response: Thanks for sending your feedback. We will update the policy to reduce ambiguity as 
much as we can. Some items you mentioned were left a little vague to allow for flexibility in responding 
to data requests. We would plan to be more specific in the MOU. 

Regarding the Santa Ana Police Department, they have access to complete data entry into HMIS. They 
don't have access to view data other agencies have entered. As with all agencies in HMIS, they can 
currently complete data exports of their own data, but not data from other agencies in HMIS. 

Item 4. Attachment E

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 26



The role of exporting data from HMIS in the data integration policy is specific to data integration only, 
and does not apply to any of the exports agencies are currently able to run. In situations where the 
entity requesting the data export doesn't have access to HMIS, 211OC would fill that role. That doesn't 
necessarily mean we would manually complete the export every time. Depending on the specifics of the 
request, we may schedule an export to send. 

Legal Feedback 
• Add that data exported to other database needs to be deleted 7 years from record creation date

to be in compliance with HUD requirements
• If the client requests to revoke their consent in HMIS after their data has already been shared,

they would have to reach out to the agency managing the outside database to have their data
deleted.

• Instead of 211OC completing the privacy, security, data storage, access roles, and data sharing
review in the outside database, the vendor of that database should certify that these items are
in compliance with best practices. The purpose is so that 211OC isn’t liable for the outside
database.

Item 4. Attachment E

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 27



  1  v3/23/20228/15/20228/23/2022 
 

 
 
COORDINATED ENTRY SYSTEM POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
Date Approved by Continuum of Care Board:  March 23, 2022TBD 
 
GOAL 
 
The goal of the Coordinated Entry System is to effectively connect individuals and families 
experiencing homelessness or at-risk of homelessness to appropriate services and housing 
interventions to end homelessness in Orange County through: 
 

 dynamic prioritization 
 collaborative coordination 
 intentional resource utilization 
 equitable resource distribution 
 regional service planning area prioritization  

 
CES LEAD 
 
The CES lead agency, County of Orange, is empowered by the Continuum of Care (CoC) to 
manage the process of determining and updating the prioritization for all CoC funded permanent 
supportive housing (PSH) and CoC and ESG funded rapid rehousing (RRH) as well as any other 
housing resources that voluntarily participate in the CES. The lead agency will work 
collaboratively with the CES Steering Committee, a committee of the CoC Board, to develop and 
review CES policies and procedures every five years, at minimum. 
 
PLANNING 
 
The Orange County CoC CES serves people experiencing homelessness in the CA-602 Orange 
County CoC, which covers the entire geographic area of Orange County. To ensure full coverage 
of Orange County’s geographic area, the CoC utilizes Service Planning Areas to allow for targeted 
services and resource allocation. 
 

Item 4. Attachment F

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 28



  2  v3/23/20228/15/20228/23/2022 
 

 
 
All households who meet the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
definition of homelessness are eligible to participate in CES. For definitions, please see 
attachment A. 
 
CES serves all individuals and families experiencing homelessness in Orange County regardless 
of race, color, national origin, religion, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, age, sex, 
familial status, marital status, income, criminal record, or experience with domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault or stalking.  
 

Item 4. Attachment F

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 29



  3  v3/23/20228/15/20228/23/2022 
 

 
 
ACCESS 
 
The Orange County CES is operated so that individuals and families seeking housing or 
supportive services can easily access services. CES and available housing and supportive 
services are widely advertised throughout the CoC. Marketing strategies include digital and 
printed media. By displaying posters, flyers, and resource guides, participating agencies within 
each Service Planning Area will support marketing efforts and mainstream partners such as 
libraries, schools, police stations, and community centers will be invited to support marketing 
efforts as well. In some cases, mainstream partners, such as U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs 
(VA), the Orange County Health Care Agencies (HCA) and Social Services Agency (SSA) Family 
Resource Centers, may serve as access points. 
 
While marketing will encourage people who are part of a particular cohort to connect with 
particular access points for a referral to CES, everyone in need will be accommodated and 
assisted at any access point. All materials will be affirmatively marketed to eligible persons 
regardless of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, familial status, disability, actual or 
perceived sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, criminal history, and those who are 
least likely to complete a CES Housing Assessment in the absence of special outreach. Marketing 
materials will also be provided in formats accessible to all individuals, including those with 
disabilities and Limited English Proficiency (LEP). 
 
Prior to attaining access, individuals or families might encounter a referral partner - an entity or 
agency that can direct a person experiencing a housing crisis to a CES access point. Examples 
of referral partners include medical providers, law enforcement and public agencies such as Parks 
and Recreation and the Public Library. Though referral partners cannot directly connect 
individuals and families to CES, they play a critical, guiding role in connecting individuals and 
families to emergency services which serve as access points into CES. 
 
Access to CES occurs after a person’s immediate crisis needs have been identified and their 
basic client information has been entered into the Homeless Management Information System 
(HMIS). Throughout Orange County, an array of homeless service providers serves as access 
points. Access points include mobile street outreach teams, navigation centers, emergency 
shelters and a virtual front door. Access points are distributed geographically throughout the 
County in all three Service Planning Areas (North, Central, and South) and the virtual front door 
provides access 24 hours a day through a call center and online access. 
 
To facilitate access to CES for veterans and people with disabilities, the VA and HCA are CES 
partners with the ability to conduct the standardized CES assessment and participate in the 
prioritization and referral process. 
 

Item 4. Attachment F

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 30



  4  v3/23/20228/15/20228/23/2022 
 

Access Model 
 
The Orange County CES is comprised of three systems:  CES for Individuals, CES for Families 
and a Veteran Registry for Veterans. All CES systems work collaboratively and follow all CES 
policies and procedures. 
 
Orange County CoC embraces a Housing First approach and, as such, CES, offers services and 
housing to people experiencing homelessness without preconditions (such as sobriety, mental 
health treatment, or a minimum income threshold) or service participation requirements. In the 
Housing First model, rapid placement and stabilization in permanent housing are primary goals. 
 
Although there are separate systems for individuals and families, the Orange County CES offers 
a “no wrong door” approach with a standardized assessment at all access points. Initial 
standardized screening at each access point allows for immediate linkage to the appropriate 
subpopulation access point. This provides individuals and families experiencing homelessness a 
variety of avenues from which to access housing and supportive services, and no one is turned 
away. 
 
Orange County CES does not prohibit or create barriers to available emergency services. Access 
to available emergency services are independent of the operating hours or coordinated intake 
and assessment processes for CES. Completing the standardized housing assessment is not a 
requirement and no individual or family will be denied access to the crisis response system based 
on willingness to participate in the assessment process. Regardless of people’s willingness to 
complete the standardized CES assessment, people will be warmly welcomed into emergency 
shelters and/or other emergency services, as available.  
 
Accessibility 
 
Orange County CES ensures that access points are accessible to all individuals and families, 
including those with disabilities and limited English proficiency. In cases where particular access 
points are inaccessible for participants for any reason including, but not limited to, structural 
barriers, language barriers, or transportation limitations, individuals and families will be 
accommodated at alternative access points or by a street outreach team with the appropriate 
auxiliary aids and services necessary to ensure effective communication and completion of the 
standardized assessment. 
 
Safety Planning 
 
Individuals and families who are fleeing, or attempting to flee, domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking need specialized assistance that promotes and protects their 
confidentiality and safety. Therefore, while they will have unencumbered access to emergency 
services and CES, appropriate and prompt referrals to services, including hotlines, and 
emergency shelters specializing in domestic violence are critical. The following domestic violence 
resources are available in Orange County: 
 

Human Options 877-854-3594 

Interval House 714-891-8121 

Item 4. Attachment F

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 31



  5  v3/23/20228/15/20228/23/2022 
 

Laura’s House 866-498-1511 

Women Transitional Living Center 714-992-1931 
877-531-5522 

Sexual Assault Victim Services (North) 714-957-2737 

Sexual Assault Victim Services (South) 949-831-9110 

2-1-1 Orange County Helpline 211 
949-646-4357  
888-600-4357  

 
Victim service providers are encouraged, but not required, to use CES and/or HMIS. 
 
Virtual Access 
 
Individuals or families experiencing homelessness or at-risk of experiencing homelessness can 
call 2-1-1 at any time, day or night, and will be connected with a certified multi-lingual referral 
specialist who can make referrals to appropriate emergency services based on individual and 
family service needs and Service Planning Area location. 
 
ASSESSMENT 
 
CES utilizes a standardized assessment process. The standardized assessment is separated into 
sections which assist in determining homelessness, vulnerability, strengths, barriers and other 
criteria related to eligibility for housing programs. The standardized CES assessment process is 
consistent across all access points including street outreach teams. 
 
Prior to completing the standardized CES assessment, access points assess and address 
immediate needs followed by efforts to prevent homelessness or divert from experiencing ongoing 
homelessness. If referrals to housing resources available through CES are required, access point 
staff begin completing the CES assessment with the individual or family experiencing 
homelessness. The CES assessment may be completed during a single session or over time as 
immediate needs are addressed and rapport is developed between access point staff and the 
individuals or families experiencing homelessness. 
 
If an individual is in crisis and requires and chooses shelter, the following steps must be taken: 

 First, provide triage including diversion and prevention; 
 Then, connect the individual or family with shelter as needed and capacity allows and; 
 Finally, follow up to complete the CES assessment.  

 
Safety planning is done for with all individuals and families who may be in danger or could be a 
danger to themselves or others including identifying appropriate supports and resources. These 
needs are uncovered through the assessment and responded to immediately to quickly offer 
appropriate referral linkages. Accessors Assessors will be trained on how to understand when a 
person is at risk of harming themselves or others and serve as mandated reporters so that they 
are equipped to call 911 when necessary or connect individuals or families to a local hospital for 
crisis supports.  

Item 4. Attachment F

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 32



  6  v3/23/20228/15/20228/23/2022 
 

 
CES assessments can and should be updated as contact information or life circumstances 
change to ensure a successful referral to an available housing resource and corresponding 
housing provider. 
 
In support of the participant’s self-determination and autonomy, CES participants are freely 
allowed to decide what information they provide during the assessment process, to refuse to 
answer assessment questions and to refuse housing and service options without retribution or 
limiting their access to other forms of assistance. Participants who decline to complete the CES 
assessment or provide incomplete information will be informed by the assessor that incomplete 
assessment information may limit housing opportunities if the incomplete questions are related to 
eligibility criteria for specific programs. 
 
Unaccompanied minors (children ages 17 and younger) will be immediately connected to Casa 
Youth Shelter (800-914-2272) or Huntington Beach Youth Shelter (714-842-6600) for emergency 
shelter and supportive services. The standardized CES assessment may be completed with an 
unaccompanied minor, as appropriate. 
 
Providers serving as access points have completed training on conducting the standardized CES 
assessment and entering data into HMIS. Updated training is provided at least annually. Ongoing 
support and training are available upon request and as resources permit. 
 
The training covers CES policies and procedures including assessment procedures, prioritization, 
housing referrals, participant privacy, cultural humility and linguistic competency, safety planning 
and trauma-informed practices. Training resources are regularly reviewed and updated as needed 
but no less than once a year. Training is provided or coordinated by the County of Orange. 
 
Each agency participating in CES will assign up to two staff as CES Agency Administrators. 
Agency Administrators will be required to attend an annual training provided or coordinated by 
the County of Orange for CES Agency Administrators. Agency Administrators are responsible for 
communication and training for all CES users and assessors within their organization. Agency 
Administrators are also responsible for quality assurance of assessments and communication 
with the County of Orange regarding staffing changes. 
 
PRIORITIZATION 
 
When the need for services is greater than resources available, CES utilizes an established 
prioritization schema approved by the CoC Board to connect individuals and families experiencing 
homelessness with available housing opportunities. Housing opportunities available through CES 
include Permanent Supportive Housing, Housing Choice Vouchers, Rapid Rehousing, and other 
housing opportunities as they become available. At minimum, all CoC and Emergency Solutions 
Grants (ESG) funded housing opportunities will prioritize individuals and families with the most 
urgent and severe needs on the CES prioritization list who are eligible for the housing opportunity. 
Other housing resources will be encouraged, but not required, to participate in CES if privately or 
alternatively funded. 
 
The Orange County CES is integrated into the emergency response services in Orange County 
to meet basic needs, including emergency shelters and transitional shelters. Individuals and 
families experiencing homelessness or at-risk of homelessness should work with emergency 
service providers and/or call 2-1-1 to receive an initial referral to emergency services. Emergency 

Item 4. Attachment F

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 33



  7  v3/23/20228/15/20228/23/2022 
 

response services will utilize the Orange County CES to connect individuals and families 
experiencing homelessness with available housing opportunities. 
 
Prevention and diversion services are part of CES and may occur prior to engaging in CES or 
during the process of participating in CES for individuals and families experiencing homelessness 
or at risk of homelessness. Prevention and diversion are key components of CES that should be 
utilized in case management and housing plans for all individuals and families experiencing 
homelessness or at risk of homelessness in Orange County. Individuals and Families at risk of 
homelessness and in need of homeless prevention services, should dial 2-1-1 to receive a referral 
to available homeless prevention services. In instances where there are no appropriate prevention 
referrals, 2-1-1 will attempt to connect participants to alternate resources. 
 
CES prioritization is a dynamic process. CES will prioritize individuals and families with the longest 
length of homelessness in the community and highest service needs as determined using CES 
assessment tools and case conferencing. A regional Service Planning Area distribution 
prioritization based on the most recent finalized point in time count is used to distribute non-
designated County resources by Service Planning Area to avoid forcing individuals or families to 
move long distances unless by participant choice.  
 
The primary factors considered during prioritization is length of homelessness and permanent 
disabling conditions. Another factor in the prioritization process is connection to shelter, which is 
aimed at increasing system flow and maximizing limited shelter and housing resources. The sole 
prioritization factor for households experiencing chronic homelessness will be length of 
homelessness. For households experiencing literal homelessness and not chronic 
homelessness, the prioritization factors are length of homelessness, disabling conditions and 
shelter status. Exceptions to the prioritization based on length of homelessness and disabling 
conditions may be made through case conferencing and as appropriate to meet specialized client 
needs. In addition, case conferencing will be employed to ensure housing resources are aligned 
to client needs and promote effective resource utilization. 
 
To facilitate the prioritization process, centralized master prioritization lists have been created for 
individuals, families, and veterans experiencing homelessness. In addition, a subset of the 
individual prioritization list is maintained monthly as a Top 10% list. To create the Top 10% list, 
the top 10% of individuals based on length of homelessness are selected as a sub-set of the 
master prioritization list. Individual matches are made from the Top 10% list unless no appropriate 
matches are available at which point, matches are made from the larger master prioritization list. 
The purpose of the Top 10% list is to focus CES efforts and support a high level of engagement 
from agencies participating in CES as well ensure the most effective and appropriate use of 
available resources. 
 
All housing opportunities available through CES will prioritize chronically homeless individuals 
and families that are the most appropriate referral to the available resource. Chronically homeless 
individuals and families with the longest length of homelessness and with the most significant 
service needs will be prioritized over chronically homeless individuals and families with shorter 
lengths of homelessness and less significant needs following the prioritization process described 
above. 
 
Housing opportunities provided by public housing authorities that are not funded through the CoC 
(ex. Housing Choice Vouchers) will be prioritized by CES in compliance with the administrative 
plan for each public housing authority jurisdiction. Prioritization and case conferencing will be 

Item 4. Attachment F

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 34



  8  v3/23/20228/15/20228/23/2022 
 

used to refer individuals and families who are the most appropriate referral to the available 
resource. 
 
Tenant-based and project-based PSH tenants are permitted to move between PSH opportunities 
and/or graduate to HCVs, as available and eligible. Movement between PSH opportunities is 
determined and agreed upon by the housing providers. Vacancies created through tenant 
movement must be refilled through CES using CES prioritization criteria. 
 
Housing opportunities that serve a specific target population may receive referrals of that target 
population. To target a specific population outside of existing practices and community standards, 
housing providers must provide documentation to CES of receipt of funding that specifies the 
funder-defined targeting criteria prior to receiving a referral. Housing providers with targeted 
housing opportunities will receive referrals from CES that meet the stated targeting criteria, 
following the system wide prioritization policy for matches. 
 
Participants remain enrolled in CES until the participant is permanently housed, opts out of 
participating in CES, or becomes inactive. Participants will be made inactive on the prioritization 
list after 90 days of non-engagement with access points or participating agencies. 
 
Scenario 1:  CES receives 5 HCVs for non-elderly individuals. Based on the 2019 2022 Point in 
Time results, homeless households were distributed throughout Orange County’s Service 
Planning Areas as follows:  4042% North, 4947% Central, and 1110% South. Therefore, the 
vouchers will be designated as follows:  2 North Service Planning Area, 2 Central Service 
Planning Area, and 1 South Service Planning Area. Starting with the Top 10% list, sheltered 
individuals Individuals experiencing chronic homelessness with the longest lengths of 
homelessness are matched to these opportunities. If no individuals experiencing chronic 
homelessness are available, sheltered individuals with a disabling condition and the longest 
length of homelessness will be considered followed by unsheltered individuals with a disabling 
condition and the longest length of homelessness. If no individuals with a disabling condition are 
available, sheltered individuals with the longest length of homelessness will be considered 
followed by unsheltered individuals with the longest length of homelessness.If no sheltered 
matches are available, unsheltered individuals on the Top 10% list will be considered prior to 
considering matches on the master prioritization list. If no individuals experiencing chronic 
homelessness are available, individuals with a permanent disabling condition experiencing 
homelessness with the longest lengths of homelessness will be considered followed by people 
without a permanent disabling condition with the longest lengths of homelessness. 
 
Scenario 2:  A project-based PSH unit becomes available in the North Service Planning Area for 
a family. Sheltered familiesFamilies experiencing chronic homelessness with the longest length 
of homelessness from the North Service Planning Area are considered first for this opportunity. If 
no sheltered families experiencing chronic homelessness from the North Service Planning Area 
are available, unsheltered families experiencing chronic homelessness from the North Service 
Planning Area will be considered followed by sheltered families experiencing chronic 
homelessness from any Service Planning Area will be considered. followed by families 
experiencing homelessness with a head of household with a permanent disabling condition from 
the North Service Planning Area, and then unsheltered families experiencing homelessness with 
a head of household with a permanent disabling condition from any Service Planning Area will be 
considered. Finally, families experiencing homelessness from the North Service Planning Area 
with the longest lengths of homelessness will be considered followed by families experiencing 
homelessness from any Service Planning Area. 

Item 4. Attachment F

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 35



  9  v3/23/20228/15/20228/23/2022 
 

 
Scenario 3:  An RRH opportunity becomes available for homeless individuals. Individuals 
experiencing chronic homelessness with the longest length of homelessness are matched to 
these opportunities. If no individuals experiencing chronic homelessness are available, sheltered 
individuals with a disabling condition with the longest length of homelessness will be considered 
followed by unsheltered individuals with a disabling condition with the longest length of 
homelessness. If no individuals with a disabling condition are available, sheltered individuals with 
the longest length of homelessness will be considered followed by unsheltered individuals with 
the longest length of homelessness.Sheltered individuals from the Top 10% list with the longest 
lengths of homelessness are considered first for this opportunity. Then, unsheltered individuals 
from the Top 10% list with the longest length of homelessness will be considered before 
considering individuals on the master prioritization list. Individuals experiencing chronic 
homelessness with the longest lengths of homelessness are considered first for this opportunity. 
Then, individuals with a permanent disabling condition experiencing homelessness with the 
longest lengths of homelessness will be considered followed by people without a permanent 
disabling condition with the longest lengths of homelessness. 
 
REFERRAL 

 
Housing providers share available housing opportunities through HMIS or a comparable database 
selected by the County of Orange. Housing opportunities are discussed weekly at the Housing 
Placement Match Meetings (HPMM) and matched to eligible individuals and families as prioritized 
by the prioritization schema. The meetings are attended by participating access points, referral 
partners and housing providers. All information shared at the HPMM is private and confidential. 
To attend the HPMM, attendees are required to review client privacy and confidentiality 
requirements and attest to complying with the privacy and confidentiality requirements.  
 
Upon referral to housing opportunities, access points will continue to support participants 
throughout the housing placement process and, ideally, for a month or more after housing 
placement to ensure housing stability is achieved. 
 
Upon referral to housing opportunities, housing providers will provide an overview of program 
expectations including the share of rent and utility costs to participants and maintain regular 
communication with access point staff and CES. For RRH opportunities, the maximum amount of 
rent that a participant may pay can be up to 100% of the rental amount. In general, the goal will 
be that participants pay no more than 50% of their income in rent at RRH program completion. 
 
When an individual or family declines a housing referral, the participant is returned to the 
prioritization list and remains on the prioritization list for a new housing referral. The individual or 
family will continue to be prioritized for available housing resources following the prioritization 
process previously described. 
 
Housing providers may deny a referral from CES under any of the following circumstances: 
 

 Inappropriate referral (ex. Accessibility needs cannot be met) 
 Ineligible referral (ex. New intake information fails to meet eligibility requirements) 
 Participant obtained other permanent housing 
 Participant is unresponsive after multiple contact attempts to all available contact 

information 

Item 4. Attachment F

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 36



  10  v3/23/20228/15/20228/23/2022 
 

 
Referrals denied by housing providers must be made in writing or electronically in HMIS and 
include the reason for denying the referral as well as any information obtained during the referral 
process that ensures accurate participant information and helps improve future referral 
processes.  
 
When an individual or family is denied by housing providers, the participant is returned to the 
prioritization list and remains on the prioritization list for a new housing referral. The individual or 
family will continue to be prioritized for available housing resources following the prioritization 
process previously described. 
 
Housing provider denials may be contested by conference between the housing provider, the 
referring agency and the County of Orange. The referred individual or family may also be involved 
as able and appropriate. 
 
EMERGENCY TRANSFER REQUEST POLICY 

 
Per the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA), any household who is a victim of domestic 
violence, dating violence, human trafficking, sexual assault, or stalking can request an emergency 
transfer under the following circumstances: 

a. A sexual assault occurred on the premises of their HUD-funded housing program; or 
b. Who reasonably believed that they are imminently threatened by harm from further 

domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, or human trafficking if they 
remain in that designated HUD-Funded dwelling. 

A request for an emergency transfer, under these circumstances, does not guarantee immediate 
placement, but participants who qualify for an emergency transfer will be given a priority referral 
over all other applications for the next available, safe unit through CES for which they qualify. 
 
If a household is currently enrolled in a HUD-funded housing program and requests an emergency 
transfer, the household must follow the housing agency’s internal emergency transfer housing 
process. If the housing program is unable to accommodate the emergency transfer request, the 
housing program may request an emergency transfer via CES.  
 
PRIVACY AND DATA MANAGEMENT 
 
CES, as an extension of HMIS, is required to comply with all HMIS policies and procedures. All 
agency staff participating in CES are required to sign and comply with all HMIS policies and 
procedures.  
 
During CES assessment, assessors are required to obtain participant consent to disclose their 
information. As needed, consent may be obtained verbally but, ideally, consent will be provided 
in writing or electronically. When participants consent to disclose their information, they enhance 
the ability of CES to assess needs and make appropriate housing referrals. If consent is not 
obtained, services will not be denied. 
 
In the case that full consent is not obtained, please note these special instructions:  Do not enter 
personal identifiable information into HMIS. HMIS will automatically generate an anonymous ID. 
Please retain at least the first page of the CES assessment part I with the HMIS ID and participant 
name for your records and future housing referrals. 

Item 4. Attachment F

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 37



  11  v3/23/20228/15/20228/23/2022 
 

 
GRIEVANCE PROCESS 
 
At any time during the coordinated entry process, participants have the right to file a complaint, 
should they feel that CES has not complied with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity 
provisions of Federal civil rights law, fair housing laws and requirements, or the CES policies and 
procedures. During assessment, all CES participants will be provided with the process for filing a 
complaint. All complaints will be addressed in a timely and fair manner. The following three 
contacts are provided to participants for the purpose of addressing discrimination or grievance 
concerns: 
 

 For grievances with Coordinated Entry System policies and procedures, contact Orange 
County Community Resources at CoordinatedEntry@ochca.com. 

 For service provider related complaints, grievance should be directed to the appropriate 
service provider for resolution. 

 For housing program related complaints, grievances should be directed to the appropriate 
housing provider for resolution. 

 To file a discrimination complaint, contact the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development through the online 
portal:  https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/fair_housing_equal_opp/online-complaint 

 
EVALUATION 
 
CES will be regularly evaluated to analyze effectiveness and to identify areas for improvement. 
System performance metrics will be examined semi-annually, at minimum, to monitor adherence 
to system benchmarks. Length of time on priority list, placement rates, and returns to 
homelessness are sample metrics that will be used to understand system capacity and determine 
where additional resources are needed. 
 
In addition, feedback will be solicited from CES participants and participating agencies through 
feedback surveys and focus groups. Participating agencies will be surveyed at least annually and 
focus group feedback opportunities will also be provided annually to solicit consumer feedback. 
Annually, all participants who utilize CES will be offered the chance to complete a feedback survey 
and/or participate in focus group feedback sessions held at geographically dispersed locations. 
The focus groups and surveys will cover all domains of the coordinated entry process, including 
intake, assessment and referral, and will be used to gauge participant and agency perception of 
system quality and effectiveness. 
 
The County of Orange, as the lead CES agency, will collect participant and agency evaluations 
and analyze system performance. The information collected will be used to recommend updates 
to CES, in consultation with a committee of relevant stakeholders. This committee will meet at 
least annually to adopt and implement system changes. 
 
For the purpose of the evaluation, data analyzed will be de-identified, and feedback will not require 
a name or other identifiable information. This will be used to ensure participant and participating 
agency privacy during the evaluation process. 
 
CES DOCUMENTS AND REGULATIONS 
 

Item 4. Attachment F

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 38



  12  v3/23/20228/15/20228/23/2022 
 

The above policies and procedures replace all previous versions of the Coordinated Entry System 
(CES) policies and procedures and are intended to ensure that all agencies participating in the 
Orange County CES comply with the following regulations: 
 
HUD Coordinated Entry Notice CPD-17-01 - Notice Establishing Additional Requirements for a 
Continuum of Care Centralized or Coordinated Assessment System 
 
HUD Prioritization Notice CPD-16-11 – Notice on Prioritizing Persons Experiencing Chronic 
Homelessness and Other Vulnerable Homeless Persons in Permanent Supportive Housing 
 
Continuum of Care (CoC) Program Interim Rule 24 CFR 578 
 
Emergency Solutions Grants Interim Rule 24 CFR 576 
 
HUD Equal Access rule: 24 CFR 5 
 
  

Item 4. Attachment F

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 39



  13  v3/23/20228/15/20228/23/2022 
 

ATTACHMENT A – Homeless Definition 

 
Information on the definition of homeless can be found on HUD Exchange at 
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/1928/hearth-defining-homeless-final-rule/ and is 
summarized below. The following four homeless categories are eligible to participate in CES. 
 
Category 1. Literally Homeless 
 
Individual or family who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence, meaning: 
 

 Has a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not meant for human 
habitation; 

 Is living in a publicly or privately operated shelter designated to provide temporary living 
arrangements (including congregate shelters, transitional housing, and hotels and motels 
paid for by charitable organizations or by federal, state and local government programs); 
or 

 Is exiting an institution where (s)he has resided for 90 days or less and who resided in an 
emergency shelter or place not meant for human habitation immediately before entering 
that institution 

 
Category 2. Imminent Risk of Homelessness 
 
Individual or family who will imminently lose their primary nighttime residence, provided that: 
 

 Residence will be lost within 14 days of the date of application for homeless assistance; 
 No subsequent residence has been identified; and 
 The individual or family lacks the resources or support networks needed to obtain other 

permanent housing 
 
Category 3. Homeless under other Federal statutes 
 
Unaccompanied youth under 25 years of age, or families with children and youth, who do not 
otherwise qualify as homeless under this definition, but who: 
 

 Are defined as homeless under the other listed federal statutes; 
 Have not had a lease, ownership interest, or occupancy agreement in permanent housing 

during the 60 days prior to the homeless assistance application; 
 Have experienced persistent instability as measured by two moves or more during in the 

preceding 60 days; and 
 Can be expected to continue in such status for an extended period of time due to special 

needs or barriers 
 
Category 4. Fleeing/Attempting to Flee Domestic Violence 
 
Any individual or family who: 
 

 Is fleeing, or is attempting to flee, domestic violence; 
 Has no other residence; and 
 Lacks the resources or support networks to obtain other permanent housing 

Item 4. Attachment F

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 40



1  v3/23/2022 

COORDINATED ENTRY SYSTEM POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

Date Approved by Continuum of Care Board:  March 23, 2022 

GOAL 

The goal of the Coordinated Entry System is to effectively connect individuals and families 
experiencing homelessness or at-risk of homelessness to appropriate services and housing 
interventions to end homelessness in Orange County through: 

 dynamic prioritization
 collaborative coordination
 intentional resource utilization
 equitable resource distribution
 regional service planning area prioritization

CES LEAD 

The CES lead agency, County of Orange, is empowered by the Continuum of Care (CoC) to 
manage the process of determining and updating the prioritization for all CoC funded permanent 
supportive housing (PSH) and CoC and ESG funded rapid rehousing (RRH) as well as any other 
housing resources that voluntarily participate in the CES. The lead agency will work 
collaboratively with the CES Steering Committee, a committee of the CoC Board, to develop and 
review CES policies and procedures every five years, at minimum. 

PLANNING 

The Orange County CoC CES serves people experiencing homelessness in the CA-602 Orange 
County CoC, which covers the entire geographic area of Orange County. To ensure full coverage 
of Orange County’s geographic area, the CoC utilizes Service Planning Areas to allow for targeted 
services and resource allocation. 

Item 4. Attachment G

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 41



  2  v3/23/2022 
 

 
 
All households who meet the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
definition of homelessness are eligible to participate in CES. For definitions, please see 
attachment A. 
 
CES serves all individuals and families experiencing homelessness in Orange County regardless 
of race, color, national origin, religion, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, age, sex, 
familial status, marital status, income, criminal record, or experience with domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault or stalking.  
 

Item 4. Attachment G

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 42



  3  v3/23/2022 
 

 
 
ACCESS 
 
The Orange County CES is operated so that individuals and families seeking housing or 
supportive services can easily access services. CES and available housing and supportive 
services are widely advertised throughout the CoC. Marketing strategies include digital and 
printed media. By displaying posters, flyers, and resource guides, participating agencies within 
each Service Planning Area will support marketing efforts and mainstream partners such as 
libraries, schools, police stations, and community centers will be invited to support marketing 
efforts as well. In some cases, mainstream partners, such as U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs 
(VA), the Orange County Health Care Agencies (HCA) and Social Services Agency (SSA) Family 
Resource Centers, may serve as access points. 
 
While marketing will encourage people who are part of a particular cohort to connect with 
particular access points for a referral to CES, everyone in need will be accommodated and 
assisted at any access point. All materials will be affirmatively marketed to eligible persons 
regardless of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, familial status, disability, actual or 
perceived sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, criminal history, and those who are 
least likely to complete a CES Housing Assessment in the absence of special outreach. Marketing 
materials will also be provided in formats accessible to all individuals, including those with 
disabilities and Limited English Proficiency (LEP). 
 
Prior to attaining access, individuals or families might encounter a referral partner - an entity or 
agency that can direct a person experiencing a housing crisis to a CES access point. Examples 
of referral partners include medical providers, law enforcement and public agencies such as Parks 
and Recreation and the Public Library. Though referral partners cannot directly connect 
individuals and families to CES, they play a critical, guiding role in connecting individuals and 
families to emergency services which serve as access points into CES. 
 
Access to CES occurs after a person’s immediate crisis needs have been identified and their 
basic client information has been entered into the Homeless Management Information System 
(HMIS). Throughout Orange County, an array of homeless service providers serves as access 
points. Access points include mobile street outreach teams, navigation centers, emergency 
shelters and a virtual front door. Access points are distributed geographically throughout the 
County in all three Service Planning Areas (North, Central, and South) and the virtual front door 
provides access 24 hours a day through a call center and online access. 
 
To facilitate access to CES for veterans and people with disabilities, the VA and HCA are CES 
partners with the ability to conduct the standardized CES assessment and participate in the 
prioritization and referral process. 
 

Item 4. Attachment G

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 43



  4  v3/23/2022 
 

Access Model 
 
The Orange County CES is comprised of three systems:  CES for Individuals, CES for Families 
and a Veteran Registry for Veterans. All CES systems work collaboratively and follow all CES 
policies and procedures. 
 
Orange County CoC embraces a Housing First approach and, as such, CES, offers services and 
housing to people experiencing homelessness without preconditions (such as sobriety, mental 
health treatment, or a minimum income threshold) or service participation requirements. In the 
Housing First model, rapid placement and stabilization in permanent housing are primary goals. 
 
Although there are separate systems for individuals and families, the Orange County CES offers 
a “no wrong door” approach with a standardized assessment at all access points. Initial 
standardized screening at each access point allows for immediate linkage to the appropriate 
subpopulation access point. This provides individuals and families experiencing homelessness a 
variety of avenues from which to access housing and supportive services, and no one is turned 
away. 
 
Orange County CES does not prohibit or create barriers to available emergency services. Access 
to available emergency services are independent of the operating hours or coordinated intake 
and assessment processes for CES. Completing the standardized housing assessment is not a 
requirement and no individual or family will be denied access to the crisis response system based 
on willingness to participate in the assessment process. Regardless of people’s willingness to 
complete the standardized CES assessment, people will be warmly welcomed into emergency 
shelters and/or other emergency services, as available.  
 
Accessibility 
 
Orange County CES ensures that access points are accessible to all individuals, including those 
with disabilities and limited English proficiency. In cases where particular access points are 
inaccessible for participants for any reason including, but not limited to, structural barriers, 
language barriers, or transportation limitations, individuals and families will be accommodated at 
alternative access points or by a street outreach team with the appropriate auxiliary aids and 
services necessary to ensure effective communication and completion of the standardized 
assessment. 
 
Safety Planning 
 
Individuals and families who are fleeing, or attempting to flee, domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking need specialized assistance that promotes and protects their 
confidentiality and safety. Therefore, while they will have unencumbered access to emergency 
services and CES, appropriate and prompt referrals to services, including hotlines, and 
emergency shelters specializing in domestic violence are critical. The following domestic violence 
resources are available in Orange County: 
 

Human Options 877-854-3594 

Interval House 714-891-8121 

Item 4. Attachment G

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 44



  5  v3/23/2022 
 

Laura’s House 866-498-1511 

Women Transitional Living Center 714-992-1931 
877-531-5522 

Sexual Assault Victim Services (North) 714-957-2737 

Sexual Assault Victim Services (South) 949-831-9110 

2-1-1 Orange County Helpline 211 
949-646-4357  
888-600-4357  

 
Victim service providers are encouraged, but not required, to use CES and/or HMIS. 
 
Virtual Access 
 
Individuals or families experiencing homelessness or at-risk of experiencing homelessness can 
call 2-1-1 at any time, day or night, and will be connected with a certified multi-lingual referral 
specialist who can make referrals to appropriate emergency services based on individual and 
family service needs and Service Planning Area location. 
 
ASSESSMENT 
 
CES utilizes a standardized assessment process. The standardized assessment is separated into 
sections which assist in determining homelessness, vulnerability, strengths, barriers and other 
criteria related to eligibility for housing programs. The standardized CES assessment process is 
consistent across all access points including street outreach teams. 
 
Prior to completing the standardized CES assessment, access points assess and address 
immediate needs followed by efforts to prevent homelessness or divert from experiencing ongoing 
homelessness. If referrals to housing resources available through CES are required, access point 
staff begin completing the CES assessment with the individual or family experiencing 
homelessness. The CES assessment may be completed during a single session or over time as 
immediate needs are addressed and rapport is developed between access point staff and the 
individuals or families experiencing homelessness. 
 
If an individual is in crisis and requires and chooses shelter, the following steps must be taken: 

 First, provide triage including diversion and prevention; 
 Then, connect the individual or family with shelter as needed and capacity allows and; 
 Finally, follow up to complete the CES assessment.  

 
Safety planning is done for all individuals who may be in danger or could be a danger to 
themselves or others including identifying appropriate supports and resources. These needs are 
uncovered through the assessment and responded to immediately to quickly offer appropriate 
referral linkages. Accessors will be trained on how to understand when a person is at risk of 
harming themselves or others and serve as mandated reporters so that they are equipped to call 
911 when necessary or connect individuals or families to a local hospital for crisis supports.  
 

Item 4. Attachment G

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 45



  6  v3/23/2022 
 

CES assessments can and should be updated as contact information or life circumstances 
change to ensure a successful referral to an available housing resource and corresponding 
housing provider. 
 
In support of the participant’s self-determination and autonomy, CES participants are freely 
allowed to decide what information they provide during the assessment process, to refuse to 
answer assessment questions and to refuse housing and service options without retribution or 
limiting their access to other forms of assistance. Participants who decline to complete the CES 
assessment or provide incomplete information will be informed by the assessor that incomplete 
assessment information may limit housing opportunities if the incomplete questions are related to 
eligibility criteria for specific programs. 
 
Unaccompanied minors (children ages 17 and younger) will be immediately connected to Casa 
Youth Shelter (800-914-2272) or Huntington Beach Youth Shelter (714-842-6600) for emergency 
shelter and supportive services. The standardized CES assessment may be completed with an 
unaccompanied minor, as appropriate. 
 
Providers serving as access points have completed training on conducting the standardized CES 
assessment and entering data into HMIS. Updated training is provided at least annually. Ongoing 
support and training are available upon request and as resources permit. 
 
The training covers CES policies and procedures including assessment procedures, prioritization, 
housing referrals, participant privacy, cultural and linguistic competency, safety planning and 
trauma-informed practices. Training resources are regularly reviewed and updated as needed but 
no less than once a year. Training is provided or coordinated by the County of Orange. 
 
Each agency participating in CES will assign up to two staff as CES Agency Administrators. 
Agency Administrators will be required to attend an annual training provided or coordinated by 
the County of Orange for CES Agency Administrators. Agency Administrators are responsible for 
communication and training for all CES users and assessors within their organization. Agency 
Administrators are also responsible for quality assurance of assessments and communication 
with the County of Orange regarding staffing changes. 
 
PRIORITIZATION 
 
When the need for services is greater than resources available, CES utilizes an established 
prioritization schema approved by the CoC Board to connect individuals and families experiencing 
homelessness with available housing opportunities. Housing opportunities available through CES 
include Permanent Supportive Housing, Housing Choice Vouchers, Rapid Rehousing, and other 
housing opportunities as they become available. At minimum, all CoC and Emergency Solutions 
Grants (ESG) funded housing opportunities will prioritize individuals with the most urgent and 
severe needs on the CES prioritization list who are eligible for the housing opportunity. Other 
housing resources will be encouraged, but not required, to participate in CES if privately or 
alternatively funded. 
 
The Orange County CES is integrated into the emergency response services in Orange County 
to meet basic needs, including emergency shelters and transitional shelters. Individuals and 
families experiencing homelessness or at-risk of homelessness should work with emergency 
service providers and/or call 2-1-1 to receive an initial referral to emergency services. Emergency 

Item 4. Attachment G

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 46



  7  v3/23/2022 
 

response services will utilize the Orange County CES to connect individuals and families 
experiencing homelessness with available housing opportunities. 
 
Prevention and diversion services are part of CES and may occur prior to engaging in CES or 
during the process of participating in CES for individuals and families experiencing homelessness 
or at risk of homelessness. Prevention and diversion are key components of CES that should be 
utilized in case management and housing plans for all individuals and families experiencing 
homelessness or at risk of homelessness in Orange County. Individuals and Families at-risk of 
homelessness and in need of homeless prevention services, should dial 2-1-1 to receive a referral 
to available homeless prevention services. In instances where there are no appropriate prevention 
referrals, 2-1-1 will attempt to connect participants to alternate resources. 
 
CES prioritization is a dynamic process. CES will prioritize individuals and families with the longest 
length of homelessness in the community and highest service needs as determined using CES 
assessment tools and case conferencing. A regional Service Planning Area distribution 
prioritization based on the most recent finalized point in time count is used to distribute non-
designated County resources by Service Planning Area to avoid forcing individuals or families to 
move long distances unless by participant choice.  
 
The primary factors considered during prioritization is length of homelessness and permanent 
disabling conditions. Another factor in the prioritization process is connection to shelter, which is 
aimed at increasing system flow and maximizing limited shelter and housing resources. 
Exceptions to the prioritization based on length of homelessness and disabling conditions may be 
made through case conferencing and as appropriate to meet specialized client needs. In addition, 
case conferencing will be employed to ensure housing resources are aligned to client needs and 
promote effective resource utilization. 
 
To facilitate the prioritization process, centralized master prioritization lists have been created for 
individuals, families, and veterans experiencing homelessness. In addition, a subset of the 
individual prioritization list is maintained monthly as a Top 10% list. To create the Top 10% list, 
the top 10% of individuals based on length of homelessness are selected as a sub-set of the 
master prioritization list. Individual matches are made from the Top 10% list unless no appropriate 
matches are available at which point, matches are made from the larger master prioritization list. 
The purpose of the Top 10% list is to focus CES efforts and support a high level of engagement 
from agencies participating in CES as well ensure the most effective and appropriate use of 
available resources. 
 
All housing opportunities available through CES will prioritize chronically homeless individuals 
and families that are the most appropriate referral to the available resource. Chronically homeless 
individuals and families with the longest length of homelessness and with the most significant 
service needs will be prioritized over chronically homeless individuals and families with shorter 
lengths of homelessness and less significant needs following the prioritization process described 
above. 
 
Housing opportunities provided by public housing authorities that are not funded through the CoC 
(ex. Housing Choice Vouchers) will be prioritized by CES in compliance with the administrative 
plan for each public housing authority jurisdiction. Prioritization and case conferencing will be 
used to refer individuals and families who are the most appropriate referral to the available 
resource. 
 

Item 4. Attachment G

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 47



  8  v3/23/2022 
 

Tenant-based and project-based PSH tenants are permitted to move between PSH opportunities 
and/or graduate to HCVs, as available and eligible. Movement between PSH opportunities is 
determined and agreed upon by the housing providers. Vacancies created through tenant 
movement must be refilled through CES using CES prioritization criteria. 
 
Housing opportunities that serve a specific target population may receive referrals of that target 
population. To target a specific population outside of existing practices and community standards, 
housing providers must provide documentation to CES of receipt of funding that specifies the 
funder-defined targeting criteria prior to receiving a referral. Housing providers with targeted 
housing opportunities will receive referrals from CES that meet the stated targeting criteria, 
following the system wide prioritization policy for matches. 
 
Participants remain enrolled in CES until the participant is permanently housed, opts out of 
participating in CES, or becomes inactive. Participants will be made inactive on the prioritization 
list after 90 days of non-engagement with access points or participating agencies. 
 
Scenario 1:  CES receives 5 HCVs for non-elderly individuals. Based on the 2019 Point in Time 
results, homeless households were distributed throughout Orange County’s Service Planning 
Areas as follows:  40% North, 49% Central, and 11% South. Therefore, the vouchers will be 
designated as follows:  2 North Service Planning Area, 2 Central Service Planning Area, and 1 
South Service Planning Area. Starting with the Top 10% list, sheltered individuals experiencing 
chronic homelessness with the longest lengths of homelessness are matched to these 
opportunities. If no sheltered matches are available, unsheltered individuals on the Top 10% list 
will be considered prior to considering matches on the master prioritization list. If no individuals 
experiencing chronic homelessness are available, individuals with a permanent disabling 
condition experiencing homelessness with the longest lengths of homelessness will be 
considered followed by people without a permanent disabling condition with the longest lengths 
of homelessness. 
 
Scenario 2:  A project-based PSH unit becomes available in the North Service Planning Area for 
a family. Sheltered families experiencing chronic homelessness with the longest length of 
homelessness from the North Service Planning Area are considered first for this opportunity. If no 
sheltered families experiencing chronic homelessness from the North Service Planning Area are 
available, unsheltered families experiencing chronic homelessness from the North Service 
Planning Area will be considered followed by sheltered families experiencing chronic 
homelessness from any Service Planning Area will be considered followed by families 
experiencing homelessness with a head of household with a permanent disabling condition from 
the North Service Planning Area, and then unsheltered families experiencing homelessness with 
a head of household with a permanent disabling condition from any Service Planning Area will be 
considered. Finally, families experiencing homelessness from the North Service Planning Area 
with the longest lengths of homelessness will be considered followed by families experiencing 
homelessness from any Service Planning Area. 
 
Scenario 3:  An RRH opportunity becomes available for homeless individuals. Sheltered 
individuals from the Top 10% list with the longest lengths of homelessness are considered first 
for this opportunity. Then, unsheltered individuals from the Top 10% list with the longest length of 
homelessness will be considered before considering individuals on the master prioritization list. 
Individuals experiencing chronic homelessness with the longest lengths of homelessness are 
considered first for this opportunity. Then, individuals with a permanent disabling condition 

Item 4. Attachment G

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 48



  9  v3/23/2022 
 

experiencing homelessness with the longest lengths of homelessness will be considered followed 
by people without a permanent disabling condition with the longest lengths of homelessness. 
 
REFERRAL 

 
Housing providers share available housing opportunities through HMIS or a comparable database 
selected by the County of Orange. Housing opportunities are discussed weekly at the Housing 
Placement Match Meetings (HPMM) and matched to eligible individuals and families as prioritized 
by the prioritization schema. The meetings are attended by participating access points, referral 
partners and housing providers. All information shared at the HPMM is private and confidential. 
To attend the HPMM, attendees are required to review client privacy and confidentiality 
requirements and attest to complying with the privacy and confidentiality requirements.  
 
Upon referral to housing opportunities, access points will continue to support participants 
throughout the housing placement process and, ideally, for a month or more after housing 
placement to ensure housing stability is achieved. 
 
Upon referral to housing opportunities, housing providers will provide an overview of program 
expectations including the share of rent and utility costs to participants and maintain regular 
communication with access point staff and CES. For RRH opportunities, the maximum amount of 
rent that a participant may pay can be up to 100% of the rental amount. In general, the goal will 
be that participants pay no more than 50% of their income in rent at RRH program completion. 
 
When an individual or family declines a housing referral, the participant is returned to the 
prioritization list and remains on the prioritization list for a new housing referral. The individual or 
family will continue to be prioritized for available housing resources following the prioritization 
process previously described. 
 
Housing providers may deny a referral from CES under any of the following circumstances: 
 

 Inappropriate referral (ex. Accessibility needs cannot be met) 
 Ineligible referral (ex. New intake information fails to meet eligibility requirements) 
 Participant obtained other permanent housing 
 Participant is unresponsive after multiple contact attempts to all available contact 

information 
 
Referrals denied by housing providers must be made in writing or electronically in HMIS and 
include the reason for denying the referral as well as any information obtained during the referral 
process that ensures accurate participant information and helps improve future referral 
processes.  
 
When an individual or family is denied by housing providers, the participant is returned to the 
prioritization list and remains on the prioritization list for a new housing referral. The individual or 
family will continue to be prioritized for available housing resources following the prioritization 
process previously described. 
 
Housing provider denials may be contested by conference between the housing provider, the 
referring agency and the County of Orange. The referred individual or family may also be involved 
as able and appropriate. 

Item 4. Attachment G

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 49



  10  v3/23/2022 
 

 
EMERGENCY TRANSFER REQUEST POLICY 

 
Per the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA), any household who is a victim of domestic 
violence, dating violence, human trafficking, sexual assault, or stalking can request an emergency 
transfer under the following circumstances: 

a. A sexual assault occurred on the premises of their HUD-funded housing program; or 
b. Who reasonably believed that they are imminently threatened by harm from further 

domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, or human trafficking if they 
remain in that designated HUD-Funded dwelling. 

A request for an emergency transfer, under these circumstances, does not guarantee immediate 
placement, but participants who qualify for an emergency transfer will be given a priority referral 
over all other applications for the next available, safe unit through CES for which they qualify. 
 
If a household is currently enrolled in a HUD-funded housing program and requests an emergency 
transfer, the household must follow the housing agency’s internal emergency transfer housing 
process. If the housing program is unable to accommodate the emergency transfer request, the 
housing program may request an emergency transfer via CES.  
 
PRIVACY AND DATA MANAGEMENT 
 
CES, as an extension of HMIS, is required to comply with all HMIS policies and procedures. All 
agency staff participating in CES are required to sign and comply with all HMIS policies and 
procedures.  
 
During CES assessment, assessors are required to obtain participant consent to disclose their 
information. As needed, consent may be obtained verbally but, ideally, consent will be provided 
in writing or electronically. When participants consent to disclose their information, they enhance 
the ability of CES to assess needs and make appropriate housing referrals. If consent is not 
obtained, services will not be denied. 
 
In the case that full consent is not obtained, please note these special instructions:  Do not enter 
personal identifiable information into HMIS. HMIS will automatically generate an anonymous ID. 
Please retain at least the first page of the CES assessment part I with the HMIS ID and participant 
name for your records and future housing referrals. 
 
GRIEVANCE PROCESS 
 
At any time during the coordinated entry process, participants have the right to file a complaint, 
should they feel that CES has not complied with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity 
provisions of Federal civil rights law, fair housing laws and requirements, or the CES policies and 
procedures. During assessment, all CES participants will be provided with the process for filing a 
complaint. All complaints will be addressed in a timely and fair manner. The following three 
contacts are provided to participants for the purpose of addressing discrimination or grievance 
concerns: 
 

 For grievances with Coordinated Entry System policies and procedures, contact Orange 
County Community Resources at CoordinatedEntry@ochca.com. 

 For service provider related complaints, grievance should be directed to the appropriate 
service provider for resolution. 

Item 4. Attachment G

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 50



  11  v3/23/2022 
 

 For housing program related complaints, grievances should be directed to the appropriate 
housing provider for resolution. 

 To file a discrimination complaint, contact the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development through the online 
portal:  https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/fair_housing_equal_opp/online-complaint 

 
EVALUATION 
 
CES will be regularly evaluated to analyze effectiveness and to identify areas for improvement. 
System performance metrics will be examined semi-annually, at minimum, to monitor adherence 
to system benchmarks. Length of time on priority list, placement rates, and returns to 
homelessness are sample metrics that will be used to understand system capacity and determine 
where additional resources are needed. 
 
In addition, feedback will be solicited from CES participants and participating agencies through 
feedback surveys and focus groups. Participating agencies will be surveyed at least annually and 
focus group feedback opportunities will also be provided annually to solicit consumer feedback. 
Annually, all participants who utilize CES will be offered the chance to complete a feedback survey 
and/or participate in focus group feedback sessions held at geographically dispersed locations. 
The focus groups and surveys will cover all domains of the coordinated entry process, including 
intake, assessment and referral, and will be used to gauge participant and agency perception of 
system quality and effectiveness. 
 
The County of Orange, as the lead CES agency, will collect participant and agency evaluations 
and analyze system performance. The information collected will be used to recommend updates 
to CES, in consultation with a committee of relevant stakeholders. This committee will meet at 
least annually to adopt and implement system changes. 
 
For the purpose of the evaluation, data analyzed will be de-identified, and feedback will not require 
a name or other identifiable information. This will be used to ensure participant and participating 
agency privacy during the evaluation process. 
 
CES DOCUMENTS AND REGULATIONS 
 
The above policies and procedures replace all previous versions of the Coordinated Entry System 
(CES) policies and procedures and are intended to ensure that all agencies participating in the 
Orange County CES comply with the following regulations: 
 
HUD Coordinated Entry Notice CPD-17-01 - Notice Establishing Additional Requirements for a 
Continuum of Care Centralized or Coordinated Assessment System 
 
HUD Prioritization Notice CPD-16-11 – Notice on Prioritizing Persons Experiencing Chronic 
Homelessness and Other Vulnerable Homeless Persons in Permanent Supportive Housing 
 
Continuum of Care (CoC) Program Interim Rule 24 CFR 578 
 
Emergency Solutions Grants Interim Rule 24 CFR 576 
 
HUD Equal Access rule: 24 CFR 5 
 

Item 4. Attachment G

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 51



  12  v3/23/2022 
 

  

Item 4. Attachment G

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 52



  13  v3/23/2022 
 

ATTACHMENT A – Homeless Definition 

 
Information on the definition of homeless can be found on HUD Exchange at 
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/1928/hearth-defining-homeless-final-rule/ and is 
summarized below. The following four homeless categories are eligible to participate in CES. 
 
Category 1. Literally Homeless 
 
Individual or family who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence, meaning: 
 

 Has a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not meant for human 
habitation; 

 Is living in a publicly or privately operated shelter designated to provide temporary living 
arrangements (including congregate shelters, transitional housing, and hotels and motels 
paid for by charitable organizations or by federal, state and local government programs); 
or 

 Is exiting an institution where (s)he has resided for 90 days or less and who resided in an 
emergency shelter or place not meant for human habitation immediately before entering 
that institution 

 
Category 2. Imminent Risk of Homelessness 
 
Individual or family who will imminently lose their primary nighttime residence, provided that: 
 

 Residence will be lost within 14 days of the date of application for homeless assistance; 
 No subsequent residence has been identified; and 
 The individual or family lacks the resources or support networks needed to obtain other 

permanent housing 
 
Category 3. Homeless under other Federal statutes 
 
Unaccompanied youth under 25 years of age, or families with children and youth, who do not 
otherwise qualify as homeless under this definition, but who: 
 

 Are defined as homeless under the other listed federal statutes; 
 Have not had a lease, ownership interest, or occupancy agreement in permanent housing 

during the 60 days prior to the homeless assistance application; 
 Have experienced persistent instability as measured by two moves or more during in the 

preceding 60 days; and 
 Can be expected to continue in such status for an extended period of time due to special 

needs or barriers 
 
Category 4. Fleeing/Attempting to Flee Domestic Violence 
 
Any individual or family who: 
 

 Is fleeing, or is attempting to flee, domestic violence; 
 Has no other residence; and 
 Lacks the resources or support networks to obtain other permanent housing 

Item 4. Attachment G

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 53



2022 CES POLICY FEEDBACK & QUESTIONS 

The CES draft policies were available for public review and feedback from August 31, 2022 through 
September 7, 2022. The feedback below was received in writing, during CoC Committee Meetings and 
during the public listening session. 

As a homeless advocate, I am concerned about losing outreach workers if we don’t remove the shelter 
preference. Outreach workers are frustrated and upset about the shelter preference and not being able 
to get people housed off the streets. The shelter preference is a barrier to housing. 

If we keep focusing on the shelter only model, we are essentially ignoring people on the streets. 

An unsheltered preference is a good idea. People that don’t want to access shelter are at the bottom 
of the list and that’s unfair. 

I agree with doing away with the shelter preference. I am helping someone with mental health issues 
that prevent her from going to shelter but that shouldn’t exclude her from housing. I agree with a hybrid 
approach. We can’t just house people directly from the streets that aren’t ready. There are people that 
are not getting proper support. How will service needs be considered? How are disabling conditions 
considered and is there a preference for people with severe mental illness? 

I view housing as a form of healthcare, so removing shelter preferences would be ideal. If a person has 
been unhoused for 15 years, said person is likely disabled. I acknowledge that persons in shelters are 
disabled but there is a modicum of safety and ability to lay down, that is not good enough either. 
Coupled with the fact that there are not enough shelter beds to 'house' our vulnerable population. I 
can understand why this question has such a conundrum. There is no right answer as housing is a human 
right, this is a human rights issue. 

I agree with the Working Group’s recommendation to consider how long people have been unhoused 
to first get the housing available. I agree with the group. 

The elimination of the prioritized shelter status should also extend past chronic homelessness status 
for families. Families who are in shelter have a better opportunity to potentially divert away from the 
system while staying in shelter. Most shelters have access to case managers and potentially housing 
navigation already, while also providing a safer environment for agencies to practice having diversion 
conversations. However, families who are staying in their car, outdoors, or a place not meant for 
habitation do not have the same opportunities and have been on the Community Queue for more than 
100 days waiting for a housing program opportunity. The length of homelessness as a prioritization 
should be extended to all families to support the process and flow for families who have been on the 
community queue for longer. 

I agree that the recommendation from the Working Group is a step in the right direction. The draft 
policies will benefit Individual CES more than Family CES since there are fewer families experiencing 
chronic homelessness. The shelter preference should be eliminated for everyone experiencing 
homelessness, not just people experiencing chronic homelessness. There are over 100 families 
experiencing unsheltered homelessness and they should be able to access housing and the shelter 
preference prevents them from being considered for housing opportunities. 

Item 4. Attachment H

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 54



We should continue to move toward true equity by removing the shelter preference. 

The Working Group’s proposal is a good compromise and clearly took a lot of work. 

Will shelter status still need to be updated if there is no longer a shelter preference? 

It will be important to continue to monitor the impact of these policy changes to confirm that we 
shouldn’t remove the shelter preference all together. 

How is this policy recommendation different from the previously proposed policy of removing the 
shelter preference? How does this recommendation mitigate the concerns that came with removing 
the shelter preference?  

If chronically homeless status will be prioritized, will there be any adjustments made to how chronically 
homeless status is being verified? Do household have to have their chronicity documented through 
services or will self-certification information suffice?  

Has the service infrastructure for unsheltered households been expanded or made more robust in 
response to this recommended policy change? 

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 55



Business Calendar 
Agenda Item 5 

Date:  September 28, 2022 

Subject:  HMIS Data Request 

Recommended Action: 
a. Approve CalOptima’s Health’s HMIS data request to support CalOptima Health’s participation in

the California Department of Health Care Services Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program.

Background and Analysis 

On September 12, 2022, CalOptima Health submitted a request to 2-1-1 Orange County (211OC), HMIS 
Lead for the Orange County Continuum of Care (CoC), for a monthly, recurring data download of all 
individuals in HMIS to allow for member matching with CalOptima Health enrollment data. Through a 
secure process, CalOptima Health staff will examine homelessness and housing status of members to link 
them to health and housing-related Community Supports, Enhanced Case Management and other relevant 
programs. These data will also enable CalOptima Health to get a better sense of the what the total number 
of individuals experiencing homelessness within the county really looks like. Insights gathered from analysis 
of these data will drive innovation and strategy development (i.e., better data equals better outcomes). 

To receive greater Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program (HHIP) payment, Department of Health 
Care Services (DHCS) requires Managed Care Plans (MCPs) to develop data sharing agreements and/or 
technical arrangements with counties, CoC leads, and other organizations that deliver housing-related 
services. The goal is to ensure MCPs can more fully participate in the CoC’s Coordinated Entry System (CES) 
and HMIS.  

Priority measures directly tied to CalOptima Health’s ability to integrate with homeless data systems 
effectively by the end of 2022 for HHIP (numbers directly correspond to HHIP Measures outline): 

• 1.2 Connection and integration with the local CES
• 2.2 MCP connection with the local HMIS
• 3.5 MCP Members who were successfully housed
• 3.6 MCP Members who remained successfully housed

CalOptima Health staff are confident that once an effective member match process has been established 
with HMIS data, lessons learned can be discussed with the County of Orange, Orange County Coc and 
211OC to better understand what changes and/or strategies could be implemented at the systems level to 
ensure individuals experiencing homelessness have access to both health care and housing services. This 
includes identifying what data elements would be most appropriate for bi-directional data sharing.  

CalOptima Health has the appropriate privacy and security mechanisms in place to ensure access to the 
requested to data is limited, stored in a safe repository, and is prepared to enter a more formal 
Memorandum of Understanding with 211OC, Orange County CoC and/or the County of Orange in the 
future.  

Attachments 

Attachment A – CalOptima Health’s HMIS Data Request 

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 56



Attachment B – HHIP Measures Outline 

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 57



2-1-1 Data Request

Subject: CalOptima Data Release Request 

Purpose: 
The California Department of Health Care Services (“DHCS”) established the Housing and Homelessness 
Incentive Program (“HHIP”) to improve health outcomes and access to whole person care services by 
addressing housing insecurity and instability as a social determinant of health for the Medi-Cal 
population. HHIP is designed to reward Managed Care Plans (MCPs), such as CalOptima Health, for 
developing capacity and partnerships to connect members to needed housing services and incentivize 
MCPs to take an active role in reducing and preventing homelessness. 

There are multiple key measures that are directly tied to CalOptima Health’s ability to integrate with 
homeless data systems effectively by the end of 2022, of which includes the following priority measures: 

• 2.2 MCP connection with the local Homeless Management Information System (HMIS)
• 1.2 Connection and integration with the local Coordinated Entry System
• 3.5 MCP Members who were successfully housed
• 3.6 MCP Members who remained successfully housed

Having access to these data will enable CalOptima Health to provide or coordinate appropriate housing 
related support services to individuals whose records are found in both the HMIS system and are 
CalOptima Health members. Further, insights gathered from analysis of these records will drive 
innovation and strategy development (i.e. better data equals better outcomes). 

CalOptima Health staff are confident that once an effective member match process has been 
established with HMIS data, lessons learned from the process can be discussed with the County of 
Orange, Continuum of Care and 211OC to better understand what changes and/or strategies could be 
implemented at the systems level to ensure individuals experiencing homelessness have access to both 
health care and housing services. This includes honing in on what elements would be most appropriate 
for bi-directional data sharing. 

Ultimately, the incentive funds earned through this program will enable CalOptima Health to continue 
making large investments in the community in the years to come. 

Background: 
On September 12, 2022, Cal Optima submitted a data request to 2-1-1 Orange County (211OC) 
requesting regular and recurring (monthly) data downloads of all individuals within HMIS to allow for 
member matching with CalOptima Health enrollment data. Through the secure member match process, 
CalOptima Health staff will track housing and homelessness status of members in an effort to link them 
to health and housing-related Community Supports, Enhanced Case Management and other relevant 
programs. 

This request would be inclusive of all project types (e.g. PSH, ES, Street Outreach, RH, RRH, etc.) and all 
populations, as applicable. 

No individual level data will be shared publicly, although any resulting aggregated analyses and/or 
reports might be shared in the following public venues including, but not limited to, CalOptima Health’s 
Board of Directors, Advisory Committees, and to DHCS in support of meeting HHIP metrics. 

Item 5. Attachment A

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 58



As a Managed Care Plan subject to HIPAA and other laws, CalOptima Health has the appropriate privacy 
and security mechanisms in place to ensure access to the requested to data is limited, stored in a safe 
repository. CalOptima Health will not use these data for reasons other than those specific within this 
request and is prepared to enter into a more formal Memorandum of Understanding with 211OC, the 
County of Orange, etc. as deemed appropriate in the future. 

Reporting Period: Each Calendar Month 

The following HUD data elements are needed to effectively meet HHIP program metrics and to drive 
excellence in service delivery, strategy development, and innovation. The minimum data elements 
required to meet HHIP metrics are annotated with an asterisk (*). 

• 3.01 Name (first, middle, last)*
• 3.03 Date of Birth*
• 3.04 Race
• 3.05 Ethnicity
• 3.06 Gender
• 3.07 Veteran Status
• 3.10 Project Start Date*
• 3.11 Project Exit Date*
• 2.02 Project Name
• 2.02 Project Type
• 3.15 Relationship to Head of Household*
• 3.16 Client Location*
• 3.20 Housing Move-in Date*
• 3.917A/B Prior Living Situation*
• 4.02 Incomes and Sources
• 4.03 Non-cash Benefits
• 4.04 Health Insurance*
• 4.12 Current Living Situation*
• 4.13 Date of Engagement*
• 4.14 Bed-night Date (start/end)*
• 4.19 Coordinated Entry Assessment*

o Assessment Date, Location, Type, Level
o Housing Opportunity Preference

• Custom Question - City of Last Permanent Address*
• Custom Question - City prior to entry*
• Custom Question - State Born
• Custom Question - Country Born
• Custom Question - Employment Status

Item 5. Attachment A

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 59



Housing & Homelessness Incentive Program (HHIP) 

1 

Priority Area Measurement Area (DHCS priority measures are noted in bold) 
1. Partnerships and
capacity to support
referrals for services
Blank cell

Blank cell 
Blank cell 
Blank cell 

1.1 Engagement with CoC, including, but not limited to: 
- Attending CoC meetings
- Joining the CoC board
- Joining a CoC subgroup or workgroup
- Attending a CoC webinar
*During program evaluation, DHCS will administer surveys to the CoC so that the Department can
better understand the level of engagement from the MCP.
1.2 Connection and integration with the local Coordinated Entry System  
1.3 Identifying and addressing barriers to providing medically appropriate and cost-effective housing-
related Community Supports services or other housing-related services to MCP members who are 
experiencing homelessness 
1.4 Partnerships with counties, COC, and/or organizations that deliver housing services (i.e., 
interim housing, rental assistance, supportive housing, outreach, prevention/diversion) with which 
the MCP has a data sharing agreement that allows for timely exchange of information and member 
matching  
1.5 Data sharing agreement with county MHPs and DMC-ODS (if applicable) 
1.6 Partnerships and strategies the MCP will develop to address disparities and equity in service 
delivery, housing placements, and housing retention (Aligns with HHAP Round 3 Application) 
1.7 Lessons learned from development and implementation of the Investment Plan (IP) 

2. Infrastructure to
coordinate and meet
member housing
needs
Blank cell
Blank cell

2.1 Connection with street medicine team providing healthcare for individuals who are homeless 
*Street Medicine defined as health and social services developed specifically to address the unique
needs and circumstances of unsheltered homeless individuals delivered directly to these
individuals in their own environment. 
2.2 MCP connection with the local Homeless Management Information System (HMIS)  
2.3 MCP process for tracking and managing referrals for the housing-related Community Supports it 
is offering during the measurement period, which may include: 
1. Housing Transition Navigation
2. Housing Deposits
3. Housing Tenancy and Sustaining Services
4. Recuperative Care
5. Short-Term Post-Hospitalization Housing
6. Day Habilitation Programs
*MCPs will be evaluated based only on the Community Supports they are offering during the
measurement period.

3. Delivery of services
and member
engagement
Blank cell

Blank cell 
Blank cell 
Blank cell 

3.1 Percent of MCP Members screened for homelessness/risk of homelessness 
3.2 MCP Members who were discharged from an inpatient setting or have been to the emergency 
department for services two or more times in a 4-month period who were screened for 
homelessness or risk of homelessness 
3.3 MCP members experiencing homelessness who were successfully engaged in ECM 
3.4 MCP members experiencing homelessness receiving at least one housing-related Community 
Supports, including: 
1. Housing Transition Navigation
2. Housing Deposits
3. Housing Tenancy and Sustaining Services
4. Recuperative Care
5. Short-Term Post-Hospitalization Housing
6. Day Habilitation Programs 
3.5 MCP Members who were successfully housed  
3.6 MCP Members who remained successfully housed  

Item 5. Attachment B

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 60



Business Calendar 
Agenda Item 6 

Date:  September 28, 2022 

Subject:  CoC Governance Charter and Membership 

Recommended Actions:  

a. Appoint the following individuals to a CoC Nominating Committee to assist in reviewing and
recommended changes to the CoC Governance Charter and facilitating the CoC Board election
process for the expiring seats, as recommended by the CoC Board Chair:

i. David Gillanders, Pathways of Hope
ii. Elida Sanchez, OC Department of Education

iii. Jennifer Friend, Project Hope Alliance
iv. Jack Toan, Illumination Foundation

Background and Analysis  

CoC Board Election Process and Governance Charter Review 

The Orange County Continuum of Care (CoC) Board serves as the locally designated primary decision-
making group whose purpose and scope is to implement the Continuum of Care program which is 
authorized by subtitle C of title IV of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 11381- 
11389). The Orange County CoC Board is comprised of 17 seats where approximately half of the board 
seats are up each year, in order to prevent all Board seats turnover at the same time, as detailed in the 
Orange County CoC Governance Charter. All board seats will be for a two-year term, with no limit on how 
many times a person can serve on the Orange County CoC Board. 

There are eight (8) CoC Board seats that are set to expire on December 31, 2022, which include: 
• One (1) seat for Public Housing Authority (PHA) representative;
• One (1) seat for Homeless or Formerly Homeless Individual representative;
• One (1) seat for Domestic Violence Agency representative; and
• Five (5) Seats for At-Large representatives.

During the August 24, 2022, meeting, the Orange County CoC Board approved the recommendation to 
establish a CoC Nominating Committee to support the annual review of the CoC Governance Charter and 
CoC Board election process for the seats expiring December 31, 2022. The CoC Nominating Committee Ad 
Hoc is to be comprised of three (3) to five (5) voting members appointed by the CoC Board Chair and 
confirming the CoC Board. At least one member of the Ad Hoc will be a CoC Board member whose seat is 
not up for election. The CoC Nominating Committee will be tasked with nominating and recommending 
candidates for ratification to the CoC Board in December 2022. 

Following the August 24, 2022, meeting, CoC Board Chair Maricela Rios-Faust worked to identify individuals 
with a deep knowledge and understanding of the CoC to support with the CoC Board Election process and 
to assist in reviewing and recommended changes to the CoC Governance Charter. The individuals identified 

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 61



were David Gillanders, Pathways of Hope; Elida Sanchez, OC Department of Education; Jennifer Friend, 
Project Hope Alliance; and Jack Toan, Illumination Foundation. 

As detailed in the Orange County CoC Governance Charter, the timeline below notes the associated 
activities of the annual CoC Board Election process. 

Month Timeline Tasks 
September CoC Board Chair appoints Nominating Committee 
October Nominating Committee convenes and outreaches to potential candidates 
November Candidates are presented to the CoC General Membership for voting/election 
December The CoC Board ratifies slate of elected candidates by the CoC General membership 
January CoC Board seating takes place. Outgoing CoC Board and Board staff will provide “training” 

for incoming Board 

Approving the individuals to a CoC Nominating Committee will support the Office of Care Coordination in 
ensuring the for the CoC Governance Charter is compliant with United States Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) and Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing (HEARTH) 
regulations, assist in reviewing and recommended changes to the CoC Governance Charter and facilitate 
the CoC Board election process for the expiring seats.  

CoC Board Meeting Pckt Pg. 62


	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Agenda - Final.pdf
	Board Members
	Judson Brown, City of Santa Ana

	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet.pdf
	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet.pdf
	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet.pdf
	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet.pdf
	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet.pdf
	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet.pdf
	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	Business Calendar Items Consolidated - CoC Board meeting - Septemeber 2022.pdf
	Business Calendar
	Agenda Item 3

	Business Calendar Item 3 Attachment A  .pdf
	Item 3. Attachment B .pdf
	Business Calendar Items Consolidated - CoC Board meeting - Septemeber 2022
	Business Calendar
	Agenda Item 4





	Pages from September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet.pdf
	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet
	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet
	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet
	Binder1.pdf
	PPS Item 1 - Attachment B - Data Integration MOU DRAFT .pdf
	Memorandum of Understanding



	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet
	Item 4. Attachments A C and D
	New: Data Breach Policy

	Item 4. Attachments A C and D
	Update: Client Consent Form (in yellow)

	Item 4. Attachments A C and D
	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet
	Binder1.pdf
	PPS Item 1 - Attachment C.pdf
	Agency Feedback 1
	Agency was interested in exploring data integration for their agency, and had the questions below.
	 Would there be a data exchange template built for providers to use?
	 How often would the data exchange occur?
	 Would it be a manual process or automatic?
	211OC response:   Thanks for your email. The Data Integration policy has been left intentionally vague in some areas to allow 211OC to have flexibility to respond to specific data requests. When the policy is finalized we will be releasing a Data Impo...

	Agency Feedback 2
	Legal Feedback







	Pages from September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet.pdf

	Pages from September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet-2.pdf
	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet
	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet
	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet
	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet
	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet
	September 28 2022 - CoC Board Meeting Packet
	Binder1.pdf
	PPS Item 2 - Attachment C.pdf
	Business Calendar Items Consolidated - CoC Board meeting - Septemeber 2022
	Business Calendar
	Agenda Item 5

	Item 5. Attachment A - CalOptima Health's HMIS Data Request.pdf
	Item 5. Attachment B - HHIP Measure Outline.pdf
	Business Calendar Items Consolidated - CoC Board meeting - Septemeber 2022
	Business Calendar
	Agenda Item 6












